OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR

Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions

ORDER

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, I hereby prescribe the form and scope of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions. The attached audit guide is hereby incorporated in its entirety. The audit guide consists of the following sections:

Page 1-1	Depositories of Public Funds and Public Investments,
Page 2-1	Conflicts of Interest,
Page 3-1	Public Indebtedness,
Page 4-1	Contracting - Bid Laws,
Page 5-1	Claims and Disbursements,
Page 6-1	Examples of Independent Auditor's Reports,
Page 7-1	Relief Associations,
Page 8-1	Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards (UFARS) for Minnesota School Districts and Charter Schools,
Page 9-1	Charter Schools,
Page 10-1	Political Subdivision Miscellaneous Provisions, and
Page 11-1	Tax Increment Financing.

These sections will comprise the minimum procedures and audit scope for legal compliance for political subdivisions in Minnesota.

/s/ Rebecca Otto

Rebecca Otto State Auditor

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Intro	duction	i
1.	Depositories of Public Funds and Public Investments	1-1
2.	Conflicts of Interest	2-1
3.	Public Indebtedness	3-1
4.	Contracting - Bid Laws	4-1
5.	Claims and Disbursements	5-1
6.	Examples of Independent Auditor's Reports	6-1
	Minnesota Legal Compliance	
	- Political Subdivisions (Other Than School Districts)	6-2
	- School Districts	6-3
	- Charter Schools	6-4
	- Relief Associations	6-5
	Combined Report	
	Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance	
	and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed	
	in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	6-6
7.	Relief Associations	7-1
8.	Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards (UFARS) for	
	Minnesota School Districts and Charter Schools	8-1
9.	Charter Schools	9-1
10.	Political Subdivision Miscellaneous Provisions	10-1
11.	Tax Increment Financing	11-1

INTRODUCTION

This Legal Compliance Audit Guide was prepared by the Office of the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, in consultation with representatives from the Attorney General's Office, towns, cities, counties, school districts, and private sector public accountants. The purpose of the task force was to establish minimum compliance guidelines for verification by auditors engaged in the process of auditing political subdivisions of the state.

This guide is divided into specific sections and presented in checklist form to assist the auditor of government units in the verification of statutory compliance. The guide is not meant to be a complete compilation of all laws affecting municipalities or a complete analysis of the laws cited throughout. The checklist is meant to act as a reference guide regarding minimum legal compliance, and municipal auditors must examine, in addition to applicable laws cited in the guide, those laws creating, granting power to, and restricting the municipal entities they are auditing.

Under each section, except for the initial question establishing the transaction covered by the topic heading and except where the explanation of a given question indicates otherwise, all questions should be answered in the affirmative. A negative answer indicates a compliance problem, and the user of the checklist is directed to the statutory section indicated on the left-hand side of the page. If after examination of the appropriate statute, the auditor using this audit guide is still unsure as to whether there has been legal compliance, he or she should check with legal counsel before rendering the opinion on compliance contained at the end of each section.

AUDITOR'S REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE

Chapter 6 contains five model reports, one of which is to be completed by the auditor following his or her completion of the appropriate compliance sections.

These reports or the language from these reports must be issued as part of the audits of the governmental entities or relief associations.

PREPARATION OF MINUTES

Auditing for legal compliance will require a review of the minutes of the governing body. In many instances, the minutes will be inadequate histories of the meetings involved. We have, therefore, deemed it appropriate to include below a discussion of minutes, so that in those instances where the minutes are substandard, auditors can provide a standard to assist clients in the future recording of meeting minutes.

Minutes may be defined as a record of the "proceedings" of a deliberative body. Various statutes that refer to taking or publishing minutes use the term "proceedings" or "official proceedings." *See* Minn. Stat. §§ 384.09 (counties); 412.151, subd. 1 (statutory cities); 367.11(1) (towns); and 123B.09, subd. 10 (school districts). The Minnesota Attorney General has used the definition of "proceedings" found at Minn. Stat. § 331A.01, subd. 6, in analyzing the clerk's duties to take minutes. This statute states:

"Proceedings" means the substance of all official actions taken by the governing body of a political subdivision at any regular or special meeting, and at minimum includes the subject matter of a motion, the persons making and seconding a motion, the roll call vote on a motion, the character of resolutions or ordinances offered, including a brief description of their subject matter, and whether defeated or adopted.

While minutes must specifically identify the actions taken by the body, they need not record the discussions of the members and others. At a minimum, the minutes must include the information required by Minn. Stat. ch. 13D [Minnesota Open Meeting Law], unless such information is recorded elsewhere. Minn. Stat. § 13D.01, subd. 4, provides:

The votes of the members of the state agency, board, commission, or department; or of the governing body, committee, subcommittee, board, department, or commission on an action taken in a meeting required by this section to be open to the public must be recorded in a journal kept for that purpose... The vote of each member must be recorded on each appropriation of money, except for payments of judgments, claims, and amounts fixed by statute.

In addition, subd. 5 states, "[t]he journal must be open to the public during all normal business hours where records of the public body are kept."

The above provision requires that the individual votes of each member of the governing body on "an action" be specifically recorded except for votes on "payments of judgments, claims, and amounts fixed by statute."

Having satisfied minimum requirements, the question of how elaborate and extensive the minutes should be is largely a policy matter for determination by the particular body in the exercise of reasonable judgment and discretion. The Attorney General has explained:

...there may be circumstances in which it would be advisable for the town board to provide for the minutes to include information over and above what is necessary to satisfy minimum statutory requirements for a record of its official actions.

Op. Atty. Gen. 851-C, March 5, 1992. For example, the board's reasons for reaching a particular decision could be crucial in defending a challenge to the action taken. The inclusion of such information may be deemed appropriate under other circumstances, such as where the body determines that the public interest warrants the award of a particular contract to a bidder other than the lowest bidder.

Other examples might be zoning decisions, such as the granting of variances or special use permits. In any case, the amount of detail which is appropriate for inclusion in the minutes of a particular body is likely to vary, depending upon the nature of the proceedings and the subject matter involved.

While the minutes of a governing body should attempt to furnish relevant information over and above bare minimum requirements, they should not, at the same time, be cluttered with unnecessary detail which hampers efforts to review or otherwise utilize them at a later date. Perhaps the best standard to be applied to the preparation of minutes is the one applied by the courts to the publication of official proceedings, i.e., the minutes should be "sufficiently full to fairly set forth the proceedings." *Ketterer v. Indep. Sch. Dist. No. 1*, 79 N.W.2d 428, 438 (Minn. 1956); *See* Op. Atty. Gen. 161-a-20, Dec. 17, 1970.

HOME RULE CHARTER CITIES AND STATUTORY CITIES

Our state Constitution provides for the creation of home rule charter cities. Minn. Const. art. XII, § 4. Minn. Stat. ch. 410 prescribes the method to create a home rule charter city and the limitations on home rule charter provisions. A home rule charter city may, through its charter, create many of its own rules and limitations as well as related procedural rules.

Statutory cities are cities in which the rights and obligations of the city are prescribed by state statutes. This audit guide was prepared primarily to check for compliance with state statutes. When auditing a home rule charter city, a review of the home rule charter will also be necessary in order to verify legal compliance with the rules unique to that city.

DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS

Minn. Stat. § 15.17, subd. 1, requires all officers and agencies of the state, counties, cities, towns, school districts, municipal subdivisions or corporations, and other public authorities or political entities within the state to make and preserve all records necessary for "a full and accurate knowledge of their official activities." The chief administrative officer is responsible for the preservation and care of the agency's government records, which include all "written or printed books, papers, letters, contracts, documents, maps, plans, computer-based data, and other records made or received pursuant to law or in connection with the transaction of public business." Minn. Stat. § 15.17, subd. 2. This duty not only prohibits destruction, but requires the custodian to take such steps as are necessary to protect public records from deterioration, mutilation, loss, or destruction. This statute also requires that all records must be delivered to the legal custodian's successor upon expiration of the term of office or authority. Minn. Stat. § 15.17, subd. 3. Additional provisions regarding data practices are found in the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. ch. 13.

For political subdivisions having problems with the storage of obsolete records, Minn. Stat. §§ 138.163-.25 provide relief. Any person who intentionally and unlawfully removes, mutilates, destroys, conceals, alters, defaces or obliterates a public record is guilty of a misdemeanor. Minn. Stat. § 138.225. Unless a municipality adopts a records retention schedule (and notifies the Minnesota Historical Society), it may not destroy public records without the permission of the records disposition panel. Applications may be made to the State Archives Department for such permission. For instance, bids with supporting documents received by a city must be kept forever, unless the city (1) adopts the General Records Retention Schedule for Cities, in which case, the city must maintain these records for ten years, (2) adopts its own properly approved records retention schedule, or (3) receives authority to dispose of the records from the records disposition panel.

A political subdivision that wishes to adopt the appropriate General Records Retention Schedule can find information on the State Archives website at <u>http://www.mnhs.org/preserve/records/retentionsched.html</u>. For information and assistance in disposing of or transferring government records, contact:

> Minnesota Historical Society State Archives Department 345 Kellogg Boulevard West St. Paul, Minnesota 55102-1906 (651) 259-3260 http://www.mnhs.org/preserve/records/index.htm

Questions about the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act should be directed to:

Minnesota Department of Administration Information Policy Analysis Division 201 Administration Building 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, Minnesota 55155 (651) 296-6733 (800) 657-3721 http://www.ipad.state.mn.us

In future years, the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions* will be updated and additional compliance sections may be added. If you have comments or suggestions with regard to future editions, please contact us at:

Office of the State Auditor 525 Park Street, Suite 500 St. Paul, Minnesota 55103 (651) 296-2551 (651) 296-4755 (Fax) http://www.auditor.state.mn.us DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND PUBLIC INVESTMENTS

LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND PUBLIC INVESTMENTS

Introduction

A government entity that receives and disburses funds may deposit the funds only in financial institutions designated by its governing body. The governing body may authorize its treasurer or chief financial officer to make such designations. The government entity may deposit funds in amounts that are federally insured or, if it deposits more than this amount, it must either have the depository furnish a bond or assign collateral to protect the excess deposit.

"Government entity" for the purpose of this section means:

- a county;*
- a city;*
- a town;
- a school district;
- a hospital district;
- a public authority;
- a public corporation;
- a public commission;
- a special district;
- a political subdivision; or
- [for depository and collateral provisions only Minn. Stat. §§ 118A.02 and 118A.03] an American Indian tribal government entity located within a reservation.

Minn. Stat. § 118A.01, subd. 2. This section does not apply to entities whose investment authority is specified under Minn. Stat. ch. 11A or 356A. *Id.*

"Public funds" for the purpose of this section means all general, special, permanent, trust, or other funds, regardless of source or purpose, held or administered by a government entity, unless otherwise restricted. Minn. Stat. § 118A.01, subd. 4.

If the audited government entity is one of those listed <u>and</u> it has the power to receive and disburse public funds, then complete this section to determine if the government entity has properly invested its funds or deposited its funds in a properly designated depository with appropriate collateral or bond.

In addition, the depository and collateral requirements of Minn. Stat. §§ 356A.06, subd. 8a, and 118A.03 apply to fire relief associations. Parts I and II should be completed for fire relief associations.

OPEB Trusts – The assets of a trust created to pay postemployment benefits (giving rise to a liability under GASB Stmt. 45) to employees or officers after their termination of service shall be invested and held as provided in Minn. Stat. § 471.6175.

*Note: A "city with a population in excess of 200,000 or a county that contains a city of that size" (currently the two largest cities and counties) has additional investment authority. *See* Minn. Stat. § 118A.07.

Minn. Stat. Section	DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND	Vee	Na	Workpaper
Section	PUBLIC INVESTMENTS	Yes	No	Reference
	Part I. Designation of Depository			
§ 118A.02, subd. 1	A. In the case of a government entity:			
	1. Has each depository of public funds been designated by the government entity's governing body, or by its treasurer or chief financial officer, if the governing body has authorized them to make such a designation?			
§ 118A.01, subd. 3	2. Is each depository one of the following:			
	a. a savings association;			
	b. a commercial bank;			
	c. a trust company;			
	d. a credit union; or			
	e. an industrial loan and thrift company?			
§ 356A.06, subd. 8a	B. In the case of a relief association:			
	1. Has each depository for assets, not held by the relief association's custodian bank, been designated by the relief association's governing board?			
	2. Is each depository one of the following:			
	a. a national bank;			
	b. an insured state bank;			
	c. an insured credit union; or			
	d. an insured thrift institution?			

	Part II. Insuring or Securing Deposits				
§ 118A.03	A.	If a government entity desires to deposit an amount in excess of deposit insurance, it must obtain a bond or collateral which, when computed at its market value, shall be at least ten percent more than the amount of the excess deposit at the close of the banking day. For the purpose of this section, "banking day" has the meaning given in Federal Reserve Board Regulation CC, 12 C.F.R. § 229.2(f), and incorporates a financial institution's cutoff hour established under Minn. Stat. § 336.4-108. If irrevocable standby letters of credit from Federal Home Loan Banks are used as collateral, the amount must be equal to the amount of the excess deposit at the close of the banking day.			
	В.	Review the following general principles of FDIC coverage and complete the spread sheet in this section to determine the amount of the government entity's funds that is not insured and thus need to be either bonded or collateralized. Deposits held by credit unions are covered by separate deposit insurance rules promulgated by the National Credit Union Administration (NCUA).			

Minn. Stat. Section	DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND PUBLIC INVESTMENTS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
	General Principles of FDIC coverage:			
	1. Deposits are insured only if the depository is a member of FDIC.			
	2. Deposits in one depository are insured separately from deposits in another depository which is not a branch of the first one. However, a depository and all of the branches associated with it are treated as a single combined depository, and the funds deposited in the branches are aggregated for purposes of insurance coverage.			
	3. Effective July 22, 2011, the aggregate of a government entity's time/savings accounts, i.e., savings accounts, NOW accounts, and time deposits (CDs), with the same depository are insured up to a total of \$250,000. The aggregate of a government entity's demand accounts, i.e., non-interest and interest-bearing checking accounts, are insured up to a total of \$250,000 and are insured separately from the government entity's time/savings deposits. This separate \$250,000 coverage for demand accounts only applies if the depository is in the same state as the government entity.			
	4. A public authority, public corporation, public commission, or special district receives separate insurance coverage from its parent government entity only if it was created expressly by state statute and funds have been allocated for its exclusive use and control. Subordinate or non-autonomous divisions, agencies, or boards do not receive separate insurance coverage.			
	5. Funds held for a special purpose and required by law to be paid to bondholders or beneficiaries such as members of pension funds or relief associations are covered up to \$250,000 per bondholder or beneficiary whether the beneficial interest is vested or not. The fiduciary nature must be indicated on the account name in the bank's records.			
	6. If more than one person is legal or official custodian of funds for a government entity, each custodian is separately insured up to \$250,000. Also, if the same person is the custodian of funds for two separate government entities, the funds for the two government entities are separately insured.			
	7. Moneys held by a government entity in trust are insured separately from other government entity funds only <u>if</u> the trust is an irrevocable express trust and the account records indicate the name of both the settlor and the trustee.			

Minn. Stat.	DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND			Workpaper
Section	PUBLIC INVESTMENTS	Yes	No	Reference
	The FDIC Board of Directors issued a final rule to implement the section of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Dodd- Frank Act) that provides temporary unlimited coverage for noninterest- bearing transaction accounts at all FDIC-insured depository institutions. The separate coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts began on December 31, 2010, and applies through December 31, 2012. <i>See</i> <u>http://www.fdic.gov/news/news/financial/2010/fil10076.html</u> .			
	Like the TAGP, the Dodd-Frank Act provides for unlimited coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts. A noninterest-bearing transaction account is a deposit account where:			
	 interest is neither accrued nor paid, depositors are permitted to make an unlimited number of transfers and withdrawals, and the bank does not reserve the right to require advance notice of an intended withdrawal. 			
	Unlike the prior TAGP, the Dodd-Frank Act provision includes all FDIC- insured depository institutions. Unlike the TAGP, the Dodd-Frank Act definition of noninterest-bearing transaction accounts does not include either low-interest Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (NOW) accounts or Interest on Lawyer Trust Accounts (IOLTAs). Money Market Deposit Accounts and NOW accounts are not eligible for this unlimited coverage, regardless of the interest rate.			
(C. Was collateral coverage sufficient? (Answer after completing the spreadsheet on page 1-11.)			

	Part III. The Bond and Collateral
§ 118A.03, subd. 1	A. If a bond was furnished by the depository to the government entity, answer the following question:
	1. Was the bond executed by a corporate surety company authorized to do business in the state?
§ 118A.03, subd. 2	B. If the depository assigned collateral to the government entity, answer the following questions:
	1. Was the collateral one of the following:
	a. U.S. government treasury bills, notes, or bonds;
	b. issues of a U.S. government agency or instrumentality that are quoted by a recognized industry quotation service available to the government entity;
	c. a general obligation of a state or local government, with taxing powers, rated "A" or better;
	d. a revenue obligation of a state or local government, with taxing powers, rated "AA" or better;

Minn. Stat. Section	DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND PUBLIC INVESTMENTS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
	e. unrated general obligation securities of a local government, with taxing powers, pledged as collateral against funds deposited by that same local government entity;			
	f. an irrevocable standby letter of credit issued by a Federal Home Loan Bank accompanied by written evidence that the Federal Home Loan Bank's public debt is rated "AA" or better by Moody's or Standard and Poor's; or			
	g. time deposits insured by any federal agency?			
§ 118A.03, subd. 7	2. Was the collateral placed for safekeeping:			
	a. In a restricted account at the Federal Reserve Bank; or			
	b. in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution not owned or controlled by the depository?			
	3. Did the government entity approve of the selection of the safekeeping entity?			
§ 118A.03, subd. 4	4. Was the collateral assignment in writing?			
	5. Did the assignment provide that, upon default, the depository shall release the collateral pledged to the government entity on demand?			
§ 118A.03, subd. 3	C. Collateral pledged must equal at least ten percent more than the uninsured and unbonded amount on deposit at the close of the banking day. If irrevocable standby letters of credit from Federal Home Loan Banks are used, the amount must be equal to the amount of the excess deposit at the close of the banking day. The depository may, at its discretion, furnish both a bond and collateral aggregating the required amount.			
	For the purpose of this section, "banking day" has the meaning given in Federal Reserve Board Regulation CC, 12 C.F.R. § 229.2(f), and incorporates a financial institution's cutoff hour established under Minn. Stat. § 336.4-108.			
<pre>§ 118A.03, subd. 5 [12 C.F.R. § 229.2(f)]</pre>	 If a bond was obtained or standby letters of credit from Federal Home Loan Banks were pledged, was the amount of excess deposit at the close of the banking day (as defined above) equal to or less than the amount of the bond or standby letters of credit? 			
§ 118A.03	2. If other collateral was pledged, was the amount of collateral at least ten percent more than the uninsured amount on deposit at the close of the banking day?			
	D. Assignment [Federal Statutory Requirements]			
[12 U.S.C. § 1823(e)]	1. Was the written assignment approved by the depository's board of directors or loan committee?			
	2. Was the assignment an official record of the depository?			

		Part IV. Public Investments
	A.	Were all repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements <u>only</u> entered into with:
§ 118A.05, subd. 2		1. a financial institution qualified as a depository of public funds;
		2. any other financial institution which is a member of the Federal Reserve System and whose combined capital and surplus equals or exceeds \$10,000,000;
		3. a primary reporting dealer in United States government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; or
		4. a securities broker-dealer licensed pursuant to chapter 80A, or an affiliate of it, regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and maintaining a combined capital and surplus of \$40,000,000 or more, exclusive of subordinated debt?
§ 118A.06	В.	If the government entity safekeeps investments with a third party:
		1. Is the government entity's ownership of all securities in which the fund is invested evidenced by written acknowledgments identifying the securities by: Image: Comparison of the function of
		a. the names of the issuers?
		b. maturity dates?
		c. interest rates?
		d. CUSIP numbers or other distinguishing marks?
		2. Were investments, contracts, and agreements held in safekeeping with:
		a. a Federal Reserve Bank;
		b. any bank authorized under the laws of the United States or any state to exercise corporate trust powers, including, but not limited to, the bank from which the investment is purchased;
		c. a primary reporting dealer in United States government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; <u>or</u>
		d. a securities broker-dealer, or an affiliate of it, that
		(1) Is registered as a broker-dealer under Chapter 80A or is exempt from the registration requirements;
		(2) is regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission; and (3) maintains insurance through the Security Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or excess insurance coverage in an amount

Minn. Stat. Section	DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND PUBLIC INVESTMENTS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
	C. Were the securities sold or pledged under the repurchase agreement or reverse repurchase agreement permissible direct investments under Minn. Stat. § 118A.04 (see L and M below)?			
	D. Were all reverse repurchase agreements only entered into:			
§ 118A.05, subd. 2	1. for a period of 90 days or less; and			
	2. only to meet short-term cash needs and not to generate cash for investments?			
	E. Were all securities lending agreements (including custody agreements) entered into only with:			
§ 118A.05 subd. 3	1. a financial institution qualified as a depository having an office in Minnesota; or			
	2. a financial institution which is a member of the Federal Reserve System and whose combined capital and surplus equals or exceeds \$10,000,000, and which has an office in Minnesota?			
	F. Did the custodian or entity operating the securities lending program only enter into securities lending transactions with those entities identified in Part IV.A. (above)?			
	G. Were all guaranteed investment contracts or agreements only entered into with an issuer or guarantor:			
§ 118A.05, subd. 5	 that was a U.S. commercial bank, a domestic branch of a foreign bank, a U.S. insurance company, or its Canadian subsidiary, or the domestic affiliates of any of the foregoing; or 			
	2. whose credit quality for long-term and short-term unsecured debt was rated in one of the highest two categories by a nationally recognized rating agency?			
	H. Did all guaranteed investment contracts give the public entity withdrawal rights in the event the issuer's or guarantor's credit quality was downgraded below "A"?			
	I. Did the government entity only invest in shares of a Minnesota joint powers investment trust whose investments were restricted to securities described in Minn. Stat. §§ 118A.04 and 118A.05?			
§ 118A.05, subd. 4	J. Mutual Funds - Did the government entity only invest in shares of an investment company that met the criteria in either 1 or 2 below:			
	1. a. registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940;	1		
	b. whose shares were registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933;			
	c. whose fund received the highest credit rating;			
	d. that was rated in one of the highest risk rating categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization; <u>and</u>			

Minn. Stat. Section	DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND PUBLIC INVESTMENTS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
	e. that only invests in financial instruments with a final maturity no longer than 13 months?			
	2. a. registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940;			
	b. which holds itself out as a money market fund meeting the conditions of SEC rule 21-7; <u>and</u>			
	c. is rated one of the two highest rating categories for money market funds by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization?			
§ 118A.05, subd. 4	K. Did the government entity only invest in units of a short-term investment fund:			
	1. established and administered pursuant to regulation 9 of the Comptroller of the Currency; and			
	2. in which investments are restricted to securities described in Minn. Stat. §§ 118A.0405?			
	L. Were all other funds invested in instruments which met at least one of the following criteria:			
§ 118A.04	 In governmental bonds, notes, bills, mortgages, and other securities, which were direct obligations or are guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress, excluding mortgage-backed securities defined as "high risk" (see Section M - Mortgage-Backed Securities); 			
	2. In a general obligation of a state or local government with taxing powers which was rated "A" or better by a national bond rating service;			
	3. In a revenue obligation of a state or local government with taxing powers which was rated "AA" or better by a national bond rating service;			
	 In a general obligation of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency which was a moral obligation of the State of Minnesota and is rated "A" or better by a national bond rating service; 			
	5. In commercial paper issued by a United States corporation or its Canadian subsidiary and that:			
	a. was rated in the highest quality category by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, and			
	b. matures in 270 days or less;			
§ 118A.04, subd. 5	6. In time deposits fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation;			
§ 118A.04, subd. 5	7. In bankers' acceptances issued by United States banks;			
§ 118A.04, subd. 7	 In its own temporary obligations issued under Minn. Stat. §§ 429.091, subd. 7 (special assessments), 469.178, subd. 5 (tax increment bonds), or 475.61, subd. 6, or 			

Minn. Stat. Section	DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND PUBLIC INVESTMENTS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
§136F.91	 (For counties, cities, towns and other municipal corporations, political subdivisions and political bodies) Bonds issued by Minnesota State Colleges and Universities under Minn. Stat. §§ 136F.90 to 136F.98. 			
§ 118A.04, subd. 8	Note: A debt service fund can purchase any issue payable from the fund.			
	M. Mortgage-Backed Securities			
§ 118A.04, subd. 2	Government entities may only purchase mortgage-backed securities that are direct obligations or guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress.			
	Mortgage-backed securities purchased shall not be "high risk." Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6, states, "high risk mortgage-backed securities" are:			
§ 118A.04, subds. 2 & 6	1. interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities; and			
	2. any mortgage derivative security that:			
	a. has an expected average life greater than ten years; or			
	b. has an expected average life that:			
	 (1) will extend by more than four years as the result of an immediate and sustained parallel shift in the yield curve of plus 300 basis points, or 			
	 (2) will shorten by more than six years as the result of an immediate and sustained parallel shift in the yield curve of minus 300 basis points; or 			
	c. will have an estimated change in price of more than 17 percent as the result of an immediate and sustained parallel shift in the yield curve of plus or minus 300 basis points.			
	3. Were all mortgage-backed securities purchased by the government entity after August 1, 1993, not "high risk?"			
	Part V. Broker Acknowledgement Certification	1	<u> </u>	
§ 118A.04, subd. 9	A. Annually, prior to completing an initial investment transaction with each broker, did the government entity provide to that broker a written statement of investment restrictions?			
	B. Did the broker acknowledge receipt of the investment restrictions and agree to handle the government entity's account in accordance with the restrictions?			
	C. Did the government entity retain documentation of compliance with A and B above?			

DEPOSITORIES OF PUBLIC FUNDS AND PUBLIC INVESTMENTS

Yes No Reference

SPREADSHEET

			а	b	с	d	(a+b) - (c+d) = e	e x 1.1 = f	g	g - f
Name of Depository	*	**	Time/Savings Accounts	Demand Accounts Accounts	Amount of Insurance Coverage	Amount of Bond	Deposits Requiring Collateral	Amount of Collateral Needed (110% of Deposits Requiring Collateral)	Market Value of Collateral Provided	Sufficient (Insufficient) Collateral Coverage
		-								
-										
	-									

* Put a check in this column if depository is a member of FDIC or NCUA.
** Put a check in this column if depository is not a branch of any of the other depositories here.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Introduction

<u>Rule</u>: A public officer authorized to take part in the making of a sale, lease, or contract shall not voluntarily have a personal financial interest in the transaction or personally benefit financially from it. Minn. Stat. § 471.87. The following persons are specifically forbidden from having any interest in any contract made by their respective governing bodies:

- 1. elected officers;
- 2. town supervisors and town board members;
- 3. county officials, county deputies, county clerks, and employees of such officials; or
- 4. school board members.

<u>Exceptions</u>: For practical reasons, the legislature has created certain limited exceptions to the general prohibition. Exceptions apply to port authorities, seaway port authorities, economic development authorities, watershed districts, soil and water conservation districts, towns, school districts, hospital districts, counties and cities. Minn. Stat. § 471.88. Part I of this questionnaire will assist you in making a determination as to whether an otherwise forbidden transaction fits within any of the statutory exceptions. Care should be taken to determine whether any exception considered applies to the entity and contract being audited.

For the purposes of this checklist, "interested officer" shall mean a public officer or employee, as listed above, who directly or through his or her spouse (see "Discussion" below) has a prohibited position or interest in either the entity making or the subject matter of the sale, lease, or contract with the governing body. Examples include:

- 1. officer;
- 2. director;
- 3. employee (see "Discussion" below);
- 4. partner;
- 5. owner (complete or partial); or
- 6. shareholder.

<u>Discussion</u>: The determination as to whether a particular transaction involves an "interested officer" often calls for a judgment on the part of the auditor. A helpful concept to remember for analysis is that it is a conflict of interest to be on both sides of a contract or transaction.

Most problems in this regard arise in the examination of the "interest" the public officer has in the person or entity making the contract with the governing body. Two frequent problem areas are:

1. <u>Contracts with Officer's or Employee's Spouse or Family Member</u>.

It is not a conflict of interest per se for a governing body to contract or otherwise economically transact with a member officer's spouse or family member. However, if the facts indicate an economic benefit to the member officer as a result of the contract or transaction, a conflict of interest exists. For example, if a husband and wife, one of whom is a public officer, share a common pool of funds and likewise share debts, conflicts may exist because there is benefit to the public officer or employee flowing from the economic benefit to his or her spouse. Likewise, if a governmental officer or employee and his or her spouse, in fact, do not economically benefit from each other, a conflict may not exist. This analysis would apply to all familial relationships. The auditor will need to factually determine whether an emancipated child living away from home has a financial interest with his or her parents.

A provision regarding employee contracts involving spouses of school board members was enacted in 2008. See Minn. Stat. § 471.88, subd. 21. This provision has been added to the checklist.

2. <u>Contracts with Companies in Which the Officer is an Employee</u>.

If the involved governmental officer or employee is simply a company employee without managerial powers and receives the same salary or raise regardless of the company's contract with the governing body, there probably is no conflict of interest. However, if said officer receives a bonus or commission or other benefit as a result of the contractual transaction between his or her company and the government entity, there is definitely a conflict of interest.

There are numerous aspects to be examined by the auditor in order to understand the totality of interests involved in a given contract or transaction between the governing body and an entity or person with a relationship to a member officer.

If, after review of the facts and applicable statutes, you are still unsure as to whether a particular set of circumstances constitutes a conflict of interest, you should contact an attorney for advice prior to preparing the "Audit Conclusion" at the end of this audit guide section.

<u>Other Statutory References to Conflicts of Interest</u>. In addition to the general statutory prohibition on conflicts of interest cited in the checklist, auditors should be aware that other statutory prohibitions and requirements exist with regard to certain types of municipal entities:

Persons/Entities	Statute
Public and local officials of metropolitan governmental units (as defined by Minn. Stat. § 10A.01, subds. 35, 22, and 24)	§ 10A.07
Housing and Redevelopment Authorities (commissioners and employees)	§ 469.009
Economic Development Authorities (commissioners and employees)	§ 469.098

Minn. Stat. Section

		Part I. Contracts Generally		
§ 471.87	-	Unless a statutory exception applies, a public officer who is authorized to take part in any manner in making any sale, lease, or contract in official capacity shall not voluntarily have a personal financial interest in that sale, lease, or contract or personally benefit therefrom.		
	-	The governing body may contract for goods or services with an interested officer only by unanimous vote. See A, infra. In addition to the unanimous vote, one of the statutory exceptions must apply. See B, infra.		
§ 471.88, subd. 1	А.	Contract for Goods or Services/Unanimous Approval		
		1. If there were any sales, leases, or contracts between the governing body and an interested officer, was each contract a contract for goods or services? <u>and</u>		
		2. If there were any sales, leases, or contracts between the governing body and an interested officer, did the governing body approve the transaction by unanimous vote?		
		Note: All <u>members</u> present, except the interested officer, must vote in order to produce a unanimous vote.		
	В.	Statutory Exceptions		
§ 471.88, subd. 2		1. Designation of Bank or Savings Association		
5400412		If the transaction involved the designation of a bank or savings association as an authorized depository for public funds and as a source of borrowing:		
		a. Did the interested officer disclose to the governing body that he or she was a director or employee of the bank or savings association?		
		b. Was such disclosure entered into the minutes of the governing body's meeting prior to the first designation of the bank or savings association as a depository or at the time of the interested officer's election, whichever was later?		
§ 471.88, subd. 3		2. Designation of Official Newspaper		
		If a transaction involved the designation of an official newspaper or publication of official matters therein:		
		a. Was the newspaper in which the officer had an interest the only newspaper complying with statutory or charter requirements relating to designation or publication?		
§ 471.88, subd.4		3. Stockholder of Cooperative AssociationIf the transaction involved a contract with a cooperative association:		
		a. Was the officer a shareholder or stockholder and not an officer or manager of the cooperative association?		

Minn. Stat.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
§ 471.88, subd. 5	4. Contracts That Do Not Need to Be Bid			
	If an interested officer entered into a contract for goods and services with the governing body:			
	a. Was the contract one that did not need to be bid?			
	(See discussion of contracts that are subject to bidding on page 4-1.) (If the interested officer is a school board member and employee of the district, <u>see</u> Part B.7., infra, "Employment Contracts with School Board Members." If the contract involves a class of employees that includes the spouse of a school board member; <i>see</i> Part B.12., infra, "School Board Member Spouse/Employee Class.")			
§ 471.89, subd. 2	b. Did the governing body, prior to performance of the contract, authorize the contract by adopting a resolution setting forth the essential facts and determining that the contract price was as low or lower than the price at which the commodity or service could be obtained elsewhere?			
§ 471.89, subd. 3	c. Prior to payment of the contract, did the interested officer file with the clerk of the governing body an affidavit stating:			
	(1) the name of the officer and office held;			
	(2) an itemization of the commodity or services furnished;			
	(3) the contract price;			
	(4) the reasonable value;			
	(5) the interest of the officer in the contract;			
	(6) that to the best of his/her knowledge and belief the contract price was as low or lower than the price at which the commodities or services could have been obtained from other sources?			
§ 471.89, subd. 2	d. If the contract was entered into under emergency conditions, did the governing body adopt such a resolution prior to payment of the claims in which the facts of the emergency are also stated?			
§ 471.88, subd. 6	5. Contract with Fire Department			
	If the governing body entered into a contract with a fire department in which an interested officer was a member:			
	a. Was the fire department a volunteer fire department?			
	b. Was the contract for payment of compensation or payment of retirement benefits?			

Minn. Stat.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference

§ 471.88, subd. 6a	6.	Contract with Volunteer Ambulance Service		
		Was the contract with a volunteer ambulance service for the payment of compensation to its members or for payment of retirement benefits to these members?		
§ 123B.195	7.	Employment Contracts with School Board Members		
		If the interested officer was a school board member and an employee of the school district:		
		a. Was the employment contract not reasonably anticipated to exceed \$8,000 during the fiscal year?		
		b. Was the contract entered into or renewed at a meeting where all board members were present and was the contract approved by a majority?		
§ 471.88, subd. 12	8.	Contract for Construction Materials or Services		
		If an interested officer contracted with the government unit to provide construction materials or services, or both:		
		a. Was the contract done by a sealed bid process?		
		b. Does the unit have a population of 1,000 or less according to the last federal census?		
		c. When the question of the contract came before the governing body for consideration, did the officer refrain from voting?		
§ 471.88, subd. 13	9.	Contract for Renting Space		
		If a public officer rented space in a public facility, was the rate commensurate with that paid by other members of the public?		
§ 471.88, subd. 15	10.	Contract or Franchise Agreement for Utilities		
		If the city has entered into a contract or franchise agreement with a utility for the provision of utility services and the council member is an employee of the utility:		
		a. Did the council member abstain from voting on any official action relating to the contract or franchise agreement?		
		b. Did the council member disclose the reason for the abstention in the official minutes of the council meeting?		

Minn. Stat. Section	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
§ 382.18	11. County Officials and Employees			
	Did the county official or employee receive reimbursement from a county for providing licensed or tribally approved family foster care?			
	or			
	Was the county official or employee a coroner, deputy coroner, coroner's investigator, or medical examiner who received compensation for professional services from a professional corporation or medical provider under contract to provide coroner services to a county?			
§ 471.88, subd. 21	12. School Board Member Spouse/Employee Class			
5404.21	A local school board may contract with a class of school district employees such as teachers or custodians where the spouse of a school board member is a member of the class of employees contracting with the school board. If this occurred:			
	a. Did the employee spouse receive no special monetary or other benefit that is substantially different from the benefits that other members of the class receive under the employment contract?			
	b. In addition, did the school board:			
	(1) have a majority of disinterested school board members vote to approve the contract,			
	(2) direct the school board member spouse to abstain from voting to approve the contract, and			
	(3) publicly set out the essential facts of the contract at the meeting where the contract is approved?			
\$\$ 412.311; 365.37, subd. 1; 382.18; & 123B.52, subd. 5	 13. Conflicts of Interest: All Other Contracts or Transactions If there were any contracts or transactions between an interested officer and the governing body, were the contracts or transactions included in the exceptions above (B1-12)? 			
	Note: If your audit involves a port authority, a public housing authority, a municipal band, a housing and redevelopment authority, an economic development authority, or a community action program or private consultant, review subdivisions 7, 9, 10, 11, or 14 of Minn. Stat. § 471.88 for additional exceptions.			

Minn. Stat. Section	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
Section		105		KUUUUUU
	Part II. Purchase of Merchandise from Governmental Agency			
§ 15.054	 A. Political subdivisions are prohibited from selling property or materials owned by the political subdivision to its officers or employees. <u>Employees</u> may make purchases from political subdivisions if the following criteria are met. 			
	For all purchases:			
	1. Was the property or materials purchased by the public employee not needed for public purposes?			
	2. Was the purchase made through sealed bids or public auction?			
	3. Was the employee <u>not</u> directly involved with the sealed bid or auction process?			
	4 Was the applicable "notice" law followed, and did the same require at least one week of published notice?			
	Minn. Stat. § 15.054 does not apply to property or materials acquired or produced by political subdivisions for sale to the general public in the ordinary course of business.			
	Part III. Cities – City Employment of Mayor or City Council Member			
§ 412.02, subd. 1a	[Note: This question only applies to persons elected or appointed to serve as mayor or city council member on or after August 1, 2010.]			
	Was neither the mayor nor any city council member employed by the city in full-time permanent employment as defined by the city's employment policy?			
L	Part IV. Audit Conclusion			
	ust state a conclusionbased on this questionnaire and any other audit procedures performed the legal provisions reviewed relating to conflicts of interest.	wheth	er the	client has

PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS

LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS

Introduction

The power of a government unit to incur indebtedness is governed by statutory and home rule charter provisions. Statutory provisions vary depending on the type of government unit involved.

Each type of borrowing instrument may also be governed by different statutes. Therefore, it is essential that the auditor examine the specific statutes or charter provisions that are applicable to the particular borrowing transaction.

This questionnaire is intended only to highlight certain general provisions of the Minnesota statutes relating to indebtedness and is not intended to cover all questions that may be pertinent.

Which of the following types of borrowing has the municipality been involved with during the past year? Please check all forms of borrowing that have either been issued or redeemed during the past year or which are currently outstanding at year-end.

	During	the Year
LONG-TERM BORROWING:	Issued	Outstanding
General Obligation Bonds (Minn. Stat. ch. 475)		
Revenue Bonds (Minn. Stat. ch. 475)		
General Obligation Revenue Bonds (Minn. Stat. ch. 475		
Capital Notes Home Charter Cities (Minn. Stat. § 410.32)		
County Capital Improvement Bonds (Minn. Stat. § 373.40)		

	During	g the Year
SHORT-TERM BORROWING:	Issued	Outstanding
Aid Anticipation Certificates (Minn. Stat. §§ 126C.52, 126C.53)		
Tax Anticipation Certificates (Minn. Stat. §§ 126C.52, 126C.53, 412.261)		
Orders Not Paid for Want of Funds (Minn. Stat. §§ 123B.12, 367.19,		
412.271)		
Loans Funded or Secured Under United States Agriculture		
Department Programs (Minn. Stat. § 465.73)		
Temporary Improvement Bonds (Minn. Stat. § 429.091, subd. 5)		
Emergency Certificates of Indebtedness (Minn. Stat. § 475.754)		
Certificates of Indebtedness (Minn. Stat. §§ 412.301,366.095, 123B.61)		
Warrants Not Paid for Want of Funds (Minn. Stat. §§ 385.31, 385.32, 384.13,		
385.05, 383A.50)		
Reverse Repurchase Agreements/Securities Lending Agreements (Minn.		
Stat. § 118A.05)		
Conditional Sales Contract/Contract for Deed (Minn. Stat. §§ 365.025,		
412.221, 465.71)		
Lease Purchase Agreements (Minn. Stat. § 465.71)		
Emergency Debt Certificates (Minn. Stat. § 475.755)		

Minn. Stat. Section

	Part I. Answer the following questions with respect to all types of indebtedness that were issued during this fiscal year:		
§ 475.51, et. seq.	A. Was council/board approval obtained for new debt issued during this fiscal year?		
§ 475.58, subd. 2	B. For debt funding or refunding obligations issued under Minn. Stat. § 475.58, subd. 2:		
	 Did the entity's outstanding gross debt exceed 1.62% of its market value? Was a listing of the indebtedness to be funded or refunded prepared by the treasurer and recording officer and filed in the office of the recording officer' 	,	
§ 475.58 subd. 2	3. Was the resolution, stating the amount of bonds to be issued and referring to the listing of indebtedness to be funded or refunded, published in the legal newspaper once each week for two successive weeks?		
	Note: Refunding obligations may be authorized by Minn. Stat. § 475.67 for which the notice required here is not applicable.		
	C. Considering the issuance of the obligations, will the net debt (as defined in Minn. Stat. § 475.51, subd. 4) of the municipality not exceed the net debt limit as is applicable below:		
§ 475.53, subd. 1	1. For all municipalities, except school districts and cities of the first class, does the net debt not exceed three percent of the market value of taxable property the municipality?		
§ 475.53, subd. 3	2. For cities of the first class, does the net debt not exceed two percent of the market value of all taxable property within the city?		
	a. If no, does the net debt not exceed three and two-thirds percent of the market value of all taxable property within the city and does the city charter allow this higher net debt limit?		
§ 475.53, subd. 4	3. For all school districts, except those located wholly or partially within a city the first class, does the net debt not exceed 15 percent of the actual market value of all taxable property within the district? (Market value is the total value of the district as certified by the county auditor or, where applicable, the value divided by a ratio certified by the Commissioner of Revenue.)		
§ 475.58, subd. 1	D. Was the request to issue the obligations submitted for approval at an election?		
§ 475.58, subd. 4	1. If so, were the proceeds only spent:		
	a. (1) for the purposes stated in the ballot language; or (2) to pay, redeem, or defease obligations and interest, penalties, premiums, and costs of issuance of the obligations; and		
	b. were none of the proceeds spent for a different purpose or for an expansion of the original purpose without approval by a majority of the electors voting on the question of changing or expanding the purpose o the obligations?		

Minn. Stat. Section	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
§ 475.58, subd. 1	2 If not, was this issuance exempt from approval by the electors for one of the following reasons:	105		
	It represented an obligation characterized as:			
	a. any unpaid judgment against the municipality;			
	b. refunding obligations;			
	c. an improvement or improvement program, the obligation for which is payable wholly or partly from the proceeds of special assessments levied upon property specially benefited by the improvement or by an improvement within the improvement program or from tax increments, including obligations which are the general obligations of the municipality, if the municipality is entitled to reimbursement in whole or in part from the proceeds of such special assessments or tax increments and not less than 20 percent of the cost of the improvement or the improvement program is to be assessed against benefited property or is to be paid from the proceeds of federal grant funds or a combination thereof, or is estimated to be received from tax increments.			
	d. an obligation which is payable wholly from the income of revenue producing conveniences;			
	e. an obligation exempt from electoral approval by the terms of the home rule charter;			
	f. exempt under the provisions of a law which permits the issuance of obligations of a municipality without an election;			
	g. an obligation to fund pension or retirement fund liabilities of a municipality pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 475.52, subd. 6;			
§ 373.40, subd. 2	h. issued under a capital improvement plan under Minn. Stat. § 373.40, where notice was published at least 14 but not more than 28 days before the county held a hearing for public comment on issuing the bonds under this section;			
	i. issued under Minn. Stat. §§ 469.1813 to 469.1815 (property tax abatement authority bonds), if the bonds are not used for a purpose prohibited under § 469.176, subd. 4g, para. (b);			
§ 475.58, subd. 1 (10)	j. issued to fund postemployment benefit liabilities pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 475.52, subd. 6, of a municipality, other than a school district, <u>and</u> were the liabilities limited to:			
	 satisfying the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 471.61, subd. 2b (insurance continuation); and other postemployment benefits, which the municipality no longer 			
	(2) other postemployment benefits, which the municipanty no longer provides to employees hired after a date before the obligations are issued?			
§ 475.755	k. issued under Minn. Stat. § 475.755 (emergency debt certificates)?			
§ 475.58, subd. 3a	 issued to refund existing debt of an indoor ice arena that is used predominantly for youth athletic activity as provided in Minn. Stat. § 475.58, subd. 3a; 			
§ 475.58, subd. 3b	m. issued for street reconstruction			

Minn. Stat.	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS	Ι.	[.	Workpaper
Section	 (1) issued for street reconstruction, including utility replacement and relocation, turn lanes, and other improvements having a substantial public safety function, realignments, other modification to intersect with state and county roads, and the local share of state and county road projects. 	Yes	No	Reference
	(2) does not include the portion of project cost allocable to widening a street or adding curbs and gutters where none previously existed, except in the case of turn lanes, safety improvements, realignments, intersection modifications, and the local share of state and county road projects, and the following conditions are met:			
	 (a) the streets were reconstructed under a street reconstruction plan that describes the street construction to be financed, the estimated costs, and any planned reconstruction of other streets in the municipality over the next five years, and 			
	 (b) the plan and issuance of the obligations has been approved by a vote of all of the members of the governing body present at the meeting following a public hearing for which notice has been published in the official newspaper at least 10 days but not more than 28 days prior to the hearing, and 			
	 (c) no petition requesting a vote on the issuance was signed by voters equal to five percent of the votes cast in the last municipal general election and filed with the municipal clerk within 30 days of the hearing; or 			
§ 400.101	n. issued for solid waste management purposes?			
	Examples are: (1) for acquisition or betterment of solid waste facilities, closure, or postclosure;			
	(2) contingency costs, related transmission facilities, or property or property rights for the facilities.			
§ 475.58, subd. 1a	E. If the issuance of obligations for the same purpose and in the same amount has previously been proposed to the electors and voted down, did this election take place at least 180 days after the first election?			
	F. If this is the third request for the same purpose and in the same amount, did this election take place at least one year after the second election?			
§ 475.60, subds. 2 & 3	G. Was the sale of these obligations in accordance with the public notice and public sale requirements of Minnesota statutes?			
§ 475.60, subd. 2	1. If no, was the sale exempt from public sale due to any of the following reasons:			
	a. obligations issued under the provisions of a home rule charter, or under a law specifically authorizing a different method of sale or authorizing them to be issued in such a manner as the council/board may determine;			
	b. obligations sold by the municipality in an amount not exceeding the total sum of \$1,200,000 in any 12-month period;			

Minn. Stat.	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
	c. except for those issued by a school board, obligations issued in			
	anticipation of the collection of taxes or other revenues appropriated for			
	expenditure in a single year, if sold in accordance with the most favorable			
	of two or more proposals solicited privately;			
	d. obligations sold to any board, department, or agency of the United States			
	of America or the State of Minnesota, in accordance with the rules of the			
	board, department, or agency;			
	e. obligations issued to fund pension and retirement fund liabilities under			
	Minn. Stat. § 475.52, subd. 6; obligations issued with tender options			
	under Minn. Stat. § 475.54, subd. 5a; crossover refunding referred to in			
	Minn. Stat. § 475.67, subd. 13; and any issue of obligations comprised in			
	whole or in part of obligations bearing interest at a rate or rates which			
	vary periodically referred to in Minn. Stat. § 475.56;			
	f. obligations to be issued for a purpose, in a manner, and upon terms and			
	conditions authorized by law, if the governing body of the municipality,			
	on the advice of bond counsel or special tax counsel, determines that			
	interest on the obligations cannot be represented to be excluded from			
	gross income for purposes of federal income taxation;			
	g. obligations issued in the form of an installment purchase contract, lease			
	purchase agreement, or other similar agreement;			
	h. obligations sold under a bond reinvestment program; or			
	i. obligations which the governing body determines shall be sold by private			
	negotiation if the municipality has retained an independent financial			
	advisor?			
§ 475.55,	H. Were all obligations signed manually by one officer of the municipality or by a			
subd. 1	designated authenticating agent?			
§ 475.65	I. Did the treasurer account for the receipt and disbursement of the proceeds of the			
	issue, for the use named in the resolution, in a separate fund or account in the official			
	financial records of the municipality?			
§ 475.61,	J. Was the appropriate information reported to the county auditor for all new issues of			
subd. 2, &	indebtedness so that the county register could be updated? (Information to include:			
§ 475.62	the purpose and date of the issue; the number, denomination, interest rate, and			
	maturity date of each bond; place and time of payment of principal and interest; and			
	the amount of the tax levied for the payment thereof.)			
§ 471.69	K. Limitation on Outstanding Warrants and Orders			
	1. Did the school district, county, statutory city, or town <u>not</u> contract debt, or issue			
	any warrant or order in anticipation of taxes levied or to be levied, in excess of:			
	- the average amount actually received from tax collections for the last			
	three years, plus			
	- ten percent?			
	-			

Minn. Stat. Section	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
Section	The Minn. Stat. § 471.69 limitations do not apply to government entities wherein th mineral net tax capacity exceeds 25 percent of its net tax capacity. Nor does it apply school district in a city of the first class, which constitutes a single school district.	e		
	Part II. Answer only the questions below that relate to the specific debt that were issued during the current fiscal year:	e types of		
§ 475.61, subd. 1	A. GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:			
	1. Did the municipality, prior to delivery of the obligations, levy by resoluti direct general ad valorem tax upon all taxable property to be spread each the obligations?			
	2. For all municipalities other than school districts, were the levies specified such that if collected in full they, together with estimated collections of s assessments and other revenues pledged for payment of the obligations, we produce at least five percent in excess of the amount needed to meet the principal and interest payments on the obligations when due?	pecial		
	3. For all school districts, were the levies specified and such that if collected they, together with estimated collection of other revenues pledged for the payment of the obligations, will produce five percent in excess of the am needed to meet the principal and interest payments on the obligations, root to the nearest dollar, when due?	ount		
§ 410.32	B. CAPITAL NOTES: (Applicable for home rule charter cities) (If capital notes were issued under Minn. Stat. § 412.301, go to Part II.K., belo	ow.)		
	1. Were the capital notes issued within applicable city debt limits?			
	2. Were the notes issued to purchase "capital equipment," which means put safety equipment, ambulance and other medical equipment, road construct and maintenance equipment, and other capital equipment and computer hardware and software, whether bundled with machinery or equipment o unbundled, having an expected useful life at least as long as the term of t notes?	ction r		
	3. Are the notes payable in not more than ten years?			
	4. Does the total principal amount of the notes issued in a fiscal year not ex .03 percent of the market value of the taxable property in the city?	ceed		
	5. Has a tax levy been made for the payment of the principal and interest or notes in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 475.61, as in the case of bonds?	1 the		
	6. Were the notes approved by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the city council?			
§ 373.01, subd. 3	C. CAPITAL NOTES: (For counties)			
	1. Were the capital notes issued within applicable county debt limits?			

Minn. Stat.		PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS			Workpaper
Section		2. Were the notes issued for "capital equipment;" i.e., public safety equipment,	Yes	No	Reference
		ambulance and other medical equipment, road construction or maintenance equipment, and computer hardware and software, whether bundled with			
		machinery or equipment or unbundled, having an expected useful life at least equal to the term of the notes?			
		3. Were the notes payable in ten or less years?			
		4. Was a tax levy made, in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 475.61, for the payment of principal and interest on the notes?			
		5. Did the county board, by resolution, issue the notes?			
§ 126C.53	D.	AID ANTICIPATION CERTIFICATES: (This form of borrowing is available only to school districts)			
		1. Was the approving resolution passed by a two-thirds vote of the board membership? (Two-thirds of a quorum is not sufficient.)			
§ 126C.54		2. Do the aid anticipation certificates mature no later than three months after the close of the school year in which the certificates were issued?			
		3. Do the aid anticipation certificates mature no later than the estimated date of receipt of the aids so anticipated?			
§ 126C.52, subds. 2, 3		4. Was the amount borrowed not in excess of 75 percent of the aids receivable by the school district in the fiscal year as estimated and certified by the Commissioner of Education?			
		[Note: For intermediate school districts, this computation may include membership fees/tuition from member school districts.]			
§§ 126C.52, 126C.53, & 126C.54	E.	TAX ANTICIPATION CERTIFICATES: (Statutes relating to school districts only)			
		1. Was the approving resolution passed by a two-thirds vote of the board membership? (Two-thirds of a quorum is not sufficient.)			
		2. Do tax anticipation certificates mature no later than three months after the close of the calendar year in which the certificates were issued?			
		3. Do tax anticipation certificates mature no later than the estimated date of receipt in full of the taxes anticipated?			
		4. Is the aggregate amount borrowed not more than 75 percent of such taxes which are due and payable in the calendar year, and as to which taxes no penalty for nonpayment or delinquency has attached?			
§ 412.261	F.	TAX ANTICIPATION CERTIFICATES: (Statutes relating to statutory cities only)			
		1. Does the total of all certificates issued against any fund for any year with interest thereon until maturity, together with all orders outstanding against the fund, not exceed the total current taxes for the fund uncollected at the time of issue plus the cash on hand in the fund?			
		2. If certificates have been issued against the anticipated tax levy for any fund, have unpaid orders outstanding against the fund been redeemed from the proceeds of the certificates?			

Minn. Stat.		PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS			Workpaper
Section		3. Are the certificates negotiable, payable to the order of the payee, and do they have a definite due date?	Yes	No	Reference
		4. Are the certificates due and payable no later than the first day of April of the year following the year of issuance?			
		5. Were the certificates sold for not less than par and accrued interest?			
		6. Do the certificates bear interest not to exceed seven percent?			
		7. Does each certificate state upon its face the fund for which the proceeds of the certificate shall be used, the total amount of the certificates issued against the fund, and the total amount embraced in the tax levy for that fund?			
		8. Are the proceeds of the taxes assessed on account of the fund against which the certificates are issued and the full faith and credit of the city irrevocably pledged for the redemption of the certificates in the order of issuance against the fund?			
§ 412.271, subd. 3	G.	ORDERS NOT PAID FOR WANT OF FUNDS: (For statutory cities)			
		1. For statutory cities, are orders marked "not paid for want of funds" being paid by the treasurer in the order of their presentation?			
§ 367.19	H.	ORDERS: (For towns)			
		1. Were orders presented to the treasurer and registered in the order of their presentment?			
		2. Were orders paid in the order they were registered out of the first money that came into the treasurer's hands for that purpose?			
§ 465.73	I.	USDA RURAL BUSINESS-COOPERATIVE SERVICE, RURAL HOUSING SERVICE, OR OTHER AGENCY OF THE USDA: (For town halls, city halls, fire halls, and fire equipment only, or libraries or child care facilities if otherwise authorized by lawapplicable to cities, counties, and towns)			
		 Is the amount borrowed from the USDA Rural Business-Cooperative Service, Rural Housing Service, or other USDA agency, within the \$450,000 statutory limit? 			
§ 475.754	J.	EMERGENCY CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS: (For cities, counties, and towns)			
		1. Do the certificates of indebtedness mature within three years?			
		2. Do the certificates of indebtedness bear interest at a rate not in excess of the allowable rate?			
		3. Are the certificates and interest thereon payable from taxes levied within existing limitations or from other available revenue?			
§ 471.3455	K.	PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT – Certificates of indebtedness or capital notes to acquire new or used public safety equipment by lease. (Statutory or home rule charter cities, counties, towns, special taxing districts, or any other political subdivision that acquires public safety equipment.)			

Minn. Stat.	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
	- "Public Safety Equipment" means vehicles and specialized equipment used by a fire department in firefighting, ambulance and emergency medical treatment services, rescue, and hazardous materials response.			
	- If the local government issued certificates of indebtedness or capital notes to acquire new or used public safety equipment by lease, did the term not exceed 15 years?			
§§ 412.301, 366.095, & 410.32	L. CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS: (Statutory cities and towns) CAPITAL NOTES: (Statutory cities and home rule charter cities) (For home rule charter cities, see also Part II.B, above.)			
	- Cities may issue capital notes (and statutory cities may issue certificates of indebtedness) to purchase public safety equipment, ambulance and other medical equipment, road construction and maintenance equipment, and other capital equipment and computer hardware and software, whether bundled with machinery or equipment or unbundled, having an expected useful life at least as long as the certificates or notes.			
	- Towns may issue certificates of indebtedness for any lawful purpose.			
	1. If such capital notes or certificates of indebtedness were issued, are they payable in not more than ten years?			
	 If the certificates or notes were issued under Minn. Stat. § 366.095 (towns) or Minn. Stat. § 412.301 (cities), was the issuance of the certificates or notes approved by the voters at an election? 			
	If not, were the following criteria met:			
	a. The amount of the certificates or notes to be issued does not exceed .25 percent of the market value of taxable property in the city or town; or			
	b. The council or town board resolution determining to issue these certificates or notes was published in the official newspaper, and no petition for an election was filed with the clerk before the expiration of a ten-day period?			
	Published resolution required only if costs exceed 0.25 percent of market value of taxable property in the city or town.			
	3. Was a tax levy made for the payment of the principal and interest on the certificates or notes?			
§ 123B.61	M. CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS OR CAPITAL NOTES: (School district - purchase of certain equipment)			
	1. Were the notes or certificates issued to:			
	a. purchase vehicles, computers, telephone systems, cable equipment, photocopy and office equipment, technological equipment for instruction, or other capital equipment having an expected useful life at least as long as the terms of the certificates or notes; or			
	b. purchase computer hardware and software, without regard to its expected useful life, together with application development services and training related to the use of the computer; or			
	c. prepay special assessments?			

Minn. Stat.	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
	2. Were the notes or certificates payable in ten years or less or, if issued to prepay special assessments, were they payable in 20 years or less?			
	3. Did the sum of the tax levies under Minn. Stat. § 123B.61 and § 123B.62 for each year <u>not</u> exceed the lesser of (1) the district's total operating capital revenue, or (2) the sum of the district's levy in the general and community service funds, excluding the adjustments under Minn. Stat. § 123B.61 for the year preceding the year in which the initial debt service levies are certified?			
	Was the district's general fund levy for each year reduced by the sum of (1) the amount of the tax levies for debt service certified for each year for payment of the principal and interest on the certificates or notes issued under Minn. Stat. § 123B.61 as required by Minn. Stat. § 475.61, and (2) the amount of the tax levies for debt service certified for each year for payment of the principal and interest on bonds issued under § 123B.62, and (3) any excess amount in the debt redemption fund used to retire bonds, certificates, or notes issued under Minn. Stat. §§ 123B.61, .62 after April 1, 1997, other than amounts used to pay capitalized interest?			
	4. If the district's general fund levy is less than the reduction, was the balance deducted first from the district's community service fund levy, and next from the district's general fund or community service fund levies for the following year?			
	5. If the district used an excess amount in the debt redemption fund to retire the certificates or notes, did the district report this amount to the Commissioner of Education by July 15 of the following year?			
	6. If the district used an excess amount in the debt redemption fund to retire the certificates or notes, did the district have neither an outstanding capital loan under Minn. Stat. § 126C.69 nor an outstanding debt service loan under Minn. Stat. § 126C.68?			
\$\$ 365.025 & 412.221	N. CONTRACT FOR DEED/CONDITIONAL SALES CONTRACT: (Applicable to statutory cities and towns)			
	1. Is the seller of the property confined to the remedy of recovery of the property in case of nonpayment of all or part of the purchase price?			
	2. Is the purchase payable over a period of time not to exceed five years?			
	3. Was the contract approved by the voters at an election?			
	a. If not, was the issue exempt from election because of one of the following reasons:			
	 (1) the contract price of the property to be purchased does not exceed 0.24177 percent of the market value of the city or town; or 			
	 (2) the council or board resolution determining to purchase property by such a contract was published in the official newspaper, and no petition for an election was filed with the clerk before the expiration of a ten-day period? 			
§ 385.31	O. WARRANTS: (For counties)			
	1. If any warrants were presented for payment to the county treasurer when there were insufficient funds in the proper account to pay the warrants:			

Minn. Stat.	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS			Workpaper
Section	a. Were warrants paid when sufficient funds became available in the order of	Yes	No	Reference
	their registration, and			
	b. Were all warrants numbered and registered in the order of presentation?			
	2. If warrants were presented when there were sufficient funds available for payment, did the county treasurer redeem the same and write:			
	a. across the entire face of the warrant the word "redeemed,"			
	b. the date of the redemption, and			
	c. his or her official signature?			
§§ 385.31 & 385.32	3. If the county treasurer borrowed money from another fund to pay a warrant presented when there was insufficient money in the account upon which the warrant was drawn, was one of the following conditions met:			
	 a. The county had a market value of taxable property of not less than \$1,033,000,000, and the money was returned to the lending fund as soon as it became available in the borrowing fund; or 			
	 b. The county had a market value of taxable property less than \$1,033,000,000, the treasurer obtained the approval of the county board and county auditor, and the money was returned to the lending fund as soon as it became available in the borrowing fund and, in any event, within six months? 			
§ 475.755	P. EMERGENCY DEBT CERTIFICATES (For cities, towns, and counties)			
	- If at any time during a fiscal year the receipts of a local government (a statutory or home rule charter city, a town or a county) are reasonably expected to be reduced below the amount provided in the local government's budget when the final property tax levy to be collected during the fiscal year was certified and the receipts are insufficient to meet the expenses incurred or to be incurred during the fiscal year, the governing body of the local government may authorize and sell certificates of indebtedness to mature within two years or less from the end of the fiscal year in which the certificates are issued.			
	- The maximum principal amount of the certificates that it may issue in a fiscal year is limited to the expected reduction in receipts plus the cost of issuance. The certificates may be issued in the manner and on the terms the governing body determines by resolution.			
	1. If emergency debt certificates were issued, was the maturity date within two years of the end of the fiscal year in which they were issued?			
	2. Was the principal amount of the certificates limited to the expected reduction in receipts plus the cost of issuance?			
	3. Did the governing body of the local government levy taxes for the payment of principal and interest on the certificates in accordance with section 475.61?			

Minn. Stat.	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS		N -	Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
	4. To the extent that the local government issued certificates under Minn. Stat. § 475.755 to fund an unallotment or other reduction in its state aid, did the local government <u>not</u> use the special levy authority for aid reduction under section 275.70,			
	subd. 5 (22), or a similar or successor provision; and			
	Did it instead use the special levy authority for the repayment of indebtedness under Minn. Stat. § 275.70, subd. 5, clause (2), in order to levy under Minn. Stat. § 475.61 to fund repayment of the certificates with a levy that is not subject to levy limits?			
	Part III. Answer the following questions for each type of issue that outstanding at some point during the fiscal year:	was		
8 175 61	A For all municipalities, execut school districts, use the cortified law encodified and			
§ 475.61	A. For all municipalities, except school districts, was the certified levy specified and such that it, together with estimated collections of special assessments and other revenues pledged for the payment of the obligations, will produce at least five			
	percent in excess of the amount needed to meet the principal and interest payments when due?			
	(For purposes of § 475.61, "municipality" means a city of any class, county, town, or school district. See Minn. Stat. § 475.51, subd. 2.)			
	1. If not, did the council adopt a resolution levying another amount of such taxes?			
§ 475.61, subd. 1	B. For all school districts, was the certified levy specified and such that it, together with estimated collections of other revenues pledged for the payment of the obligations, will produce five percent in excess of the amount needed to meet the principal and interest payments when due?			
	1. If not, did the board adopt a resolution levying another amount of such taxes?			
§ 475.61, subd. 3	C. For school districts, did the district report to the Commissioner of Education, the district's debt redemption fund balance as of June 30 of the prior year attributable to refunding of existing bonds; and			
	1. Did the commissioner reduce the levies; <u>or</u>			
	2. Did the school board, with the commissioner's approval, retain all or part of the excess balance?			
§ 475.61, subd. 4	D. 1. For obligations authorized before July 1, 2005, was the amount of any surplus remaining in the debt redemption fund of a school district when the obligations and interest thereon are paid used to reduce the general fund levies or state aids?			
	2. For obligations authorized on July 1, 2005 or thereafter, was the amount of any surplus remaining in the debt service fund of a school district when the obligations and interest thereon are paid in full (a) appropriated to any other general purpose without any reductions in state aid or levies or (b) used to reduce the general fund levies or state aid?			
§ 471.70	E. Has the principal accounting officer of the municipality reported, on or before February 1 st of each year, to the auditor of each county in which the municipality is situated, the total amount of outstanding obligations and the purpose for which issued, as of December 31 st of the preceding year?			
	(For the purpose of § 471.70, "municipality" means a city, however organized; a school district, however organized; a town; or any other body corporate and politic created under Minnesota law. See Minn. Stat. § 471.70.)			

Minn. Stat.	PUBLIC INDEBTEDNESS			Workpaper			
Section		Yes	No	Reference			
	Part IV. Audit Conclusion						
	nust state a conclusionbased on this questionnaire and any other audit procedures performed- n the legal provisions reviewed relating to public indebtedness.	whethe	er the c	elient has			
Conclusion:							

CONTRACTING - BID LAWS

LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE CONTRACTING - BID LAWS

Introduction

A municipality entering into an agreement for the sale or purchase of supplies, materials, equipment or the rental thereof, or the construction, alteration, repair or maintenance of real or personal property must abide by the statutes relating to contracting and bidding. In addition, for counties, such statutory requirements also apply to contracts for "work or labor."

A municipality, for the purpose of this section, is a county, town, city, school district, or other municipal corporation or political subdivision of the state authorized by law to enter into contracts. Each contract must be approved by the appropriate authority, as authorized by statute or charter, within the municipality.

If the audited governmental unit is one of the listed types of municipalities and it has the power to contract, complete the questionnaire to determine if the municipality conformed to the contracting and bidding statutes.

Minn. Stat. § 471.345, the <u>Uniform Municipal Contracting Law</u>, was established to provide dollar limits for all municipalities upon contracts which shall or may be entered into on the basis of competitive bids, quotations, or purchase or sale in the open market. Vendors may now submit bids, quotations, and proposals electronically in a form and manner required by the municipality. Minn. Stat. § 471.345, subd. 18. Generally, the following thresholds apply:

- 1. For contracts over \$100,000 sealed bids, solicited by public notice and subject to the particular requirements of the governmental subdivision.
- 2. For contracts from \$25,000 to \$100,000 sealed bids or direct negotiation, with two quotations whenever possible.
- 3. For contracts of \$25,000 or less open market or quotations (with at least two contract quotations, if practicable).

In addition, Minn. Stat. § 471.345, subds. 16 and 17, allow municipalities to purchase supplies, materials, and equipment using an electronic reverse auction process; and to sell supplies, materials, and equipment which is surplus, obsolete, or unused using an electronic selling process.

Best value procurement is a process based on competitive proposals (as an alternative to bids) that awards the contract to "the vendor or contractor offering the best value, taking into account the specifications of the request for proposals, the price and performance criteria as set forth in [Minn. Stat. § 16C.02, subd. 4a] and described in the solicitation document." Minn. Stat. § 16C.28, subd. 1(a)(2). Before administering best value procurement procedures, personnel must be trained in the best value RFP process. *See* Minn. Stat. § 16C.03, subd. 19.

	Part I. Uni	form Municipal and Contracting Law - Applies to All Municipal	lities	
	A Generally, for all	l municipalities:		
§ 471.345	required. Vendo	ontract amount determines whether sealed bids or quotations are rs may submit bids, quotations, and proposals electronically in a r required by the municipality.		
	1. Contracts o	ver \$100,000 (sealed bids or best value procurement)		
	a. Seale	ed bids		
§ 471.345, subd. 3	(1)	Have all contracts estimated to exceed \$100,000 been let on sealed bids?		
	(2)	Have the bids been solicited by public notice?		
	(3)	Are the bids on file? (See Introduction section entitled "Destruction of Records," pages iii through iv.)		
Minn. Stat. §§ 123B.52, subd. 1b; 375.21, subd. 1b; 412.311, subd. 2, and 471.345, subds. 3a, 4a, and 5	b. Best	value procurement alternative		
§ 16C.28, sub. 1a	If a b	best value procurement procedure was used as an alternative:		
	(1)	Was the political subdivision eligible to choose the best value contracting system based on the Minn. Stat. § 16C.28, subd. 1a phases [<i>see</i> page 4-1]?		
Minn. Stat. §§ 123B.52, subd. 1b; 375.21, subd. 1b; 412.311, subd. 2, and 471.345, subds. 3a, 4a, and 5	(2)	Was the contract a contract for construction, building, alteration, improvement, repair or maintenance?		
§ 16C.28, subd. 1c	(3)	Did the solicitation document state the relative weight of price and other selection criteria?		
	(4)	Was the award made to the vendor or contractor offering the best value applying the weighted selection criteria?		

Minn. Stat.	CONTRACTING - BID LAWS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
~~~~~				

	(5)	If an interview of the vendor's or contractor's personnel was one of the selection criteria, was the relative weight of the interview stated in the solicitation document and applied accordingly? Minn. Stat. § 16C.28, subd. 1(c) (2008).		
		om \$25,000 to \$100,000 can be made on sealed bids, by direct based on quotations, or through best value procurement.		
§ 471.345, subd. 4	a. Seale	d bids or quotations		
	(1)	Have contracts estimated to exceed \$25,000 but not to exceed \$100,000 been let on sealed bids or negotiated quotes?		
	(2)	If sealed bids were used, were the requirements of A.1. met?		
	(3)	If quotations were used and obtaining two or more quotes was possible, were two or more quotes obtained?		
	(4)	If quotations were used, were the quotations kept on file for at least one year?		
Minn. Stat. §§ 123B.52, subd. 1b; 375.21, subd. 1b; 412.311, subd. 2, and 471.345, subds. 3a, 4a, and 5	b. Best	value procurement alternative		
§ 16C.28, sub. 1a	If a b	est value procurement procedure was used as an alternative:		
	(1)	Was the political subdivision eligible to choose the best value contracting system based on the Minn. Stat. § 16C.28, subd. 1a phases [ <i>see</i> page 4-1]?		
Minn. Stat. §§ 123B.52, subd. 1b; 375.21, subd. 1b; 412.311, subd. 2, and 471.345, subds. 3a, 4a, and 5	(2)	Was the contract a contract for construction, building, alteration, improvement, repair or maintenance?		
§ 16C,28, subd. 1c	(3)	Did the solicitation document state the relative weight of price and other selection criteria?		
	(4)	Was the award made to the vendor or contractor offering the best value applying the weighted selection criteria?		

Minn. Stat.	CONTRACTING - BID LAWS
Section	

	(5)	If an interview of the vendor's or contractor's personnel was one of the selection criteria, was the relative weight of the interview stated in the solicitation document and applied accordingly? Minn. Stat. § 16C.28, subd. 1(c) (2008).	
		stimated to be \$25,000 or less may be made either upon quotation, market, or through best value procurement.	
§ 471.345, subd. 5	a. If que	otations were used, are they on file?	
Minn. Stat. §§ 123B.52, subd. 1b; 375.21, subd. 1b; 412.311, subd. 2, and 471.345, subds. 3a, 4a, and 5	b. Best	value procurement alternative	
§ 16C.28, sub. 1a	If a b	est value procurement procedure was used as an alternative:	
	(1)	Was the political subdivision eligible to choose the best value contracting system based on the Minn. Stat. § 16C.28, subd. 1a phases [ <i>see</i> page 4-1]?	
Minn. Stat. §§ 123B.52, subd. 1b; 375.21, subd. 1b; 412.311, subd. 2, and 471.345, subds. 3a, 4a, and 5	(2)	Was the contract a contract for construction, building, alteration, improvement, repair or maintenance?	
§ 16C.28, subd. 1c	(3)	Did the solicitation document state the relative weight of price and other selection criteria?	
	(4)	Was the award made to the vendor or contractor offering the best value applying the weighted selection criteria?	
	(5)	If an interview of the vendor's or contractor's personnel was one of the selection criteria, was the relative weight of the interview stated in the solicitation document and applied accordingly? Minn. Stat. § 16C.28, subd. 1(c) (2008).	
§ 471.345, subd. 16	B Reverse Auction	Purchase	
	If the municipali	ty contracted to purchase using an electronic purchasing process:	

Minn. Stat.	
Section	

Yes No Reference

	· · · · · ·	
	<ol> <li>Was the purchase a purchase of supplies, materials, or equipment, and <u>not</u> a contract for services or a service contract as defined in Minn. Stat. §§ 16C.02, subds. 16 and 17; and</li> </ol>	
	2. Was the electronic process a purchasing process in which vendors competed to provide the supplies, materials, or equipment at the lowest selling price in an open and interactive environment?	
§ 471.345, subd. 17	C Electronic Sale	
	If the municipality contracted to sell using an electronic selling process:	
	1. Was the sale a sale of supplies, materials, or equipment which was surplus, obsolete, or unused; and	
	2. Was the electronic process a selling process in which purchasers competed to purchase the surplus supplies, materials, or equipment at the highest purchase price in an open and interactive environment?	
§ 331A.03, subd. 3	D Alternative Dissemination of Bids and Requests	
	If, as an alternative to publishing them in a newspaper, a political subdivision disseminated solicitations of bids, requests for information or requests for proposals by using a Web site or recognized industry trade journals:	
	1. Did the political subdivision simultaneously publish, either in minutes or separately, in a notice published in the official newspaper, a description of all solicitations or requests so disseminated, along with the means by which the disseminations occurred?	
	2. Was the dissemination by alternative means in substantially the same format and for the same period of time as a publication in a qualified newspaper?	
	3. For the first six months after the political subdivision designated an alternative means of dissemination, did it continue to publish solicitation of bids, requests for information, and requests for proposals in the official newspaper in addition to the alternative method?	
	4. Did the publication in the official newspaper indicate where to find the designated alternative method?       Image: Comparison of the designated alternative method	
§ 471.345, subd. 5a	<ul> <li>E County or town contracts for the rental of equipment estimated to be \$60,000 or</li> <li>less may, at the discretion of the board, be made by direct negotiation by obtaining two or more quotations when possible. If this method was used, were quotations kept on file for at least one year?</li> </ul>	
§ 471.345, Subd. 15	F If the municipality contracted for the purchase of supplies, materials, or equipment . without regard to competitive bidding requirements, was the purchase through the State of Minnesota's cooperative purchasing venture or a national municipal association's purchasing alliance or cooperative created by a joint powers agreement that purchases items from more than one source on the basis of competitive bids or competitive quotations?	

Section		Yes	No	Reference
§ 471.345, Subd. 15	<ul> <li>G For each contract for the purchase of supplies, materials, or equipment over</li> <li>\$25,000, did the municipality consider the availability, price and quality of supplies, materials, or equipment available through the state's cooperative purchasing venture before purchasing through another source</li> <li>Note: Exceptions to the competitive bidding requirements of Minn. Stat.</li> <li>\$471.345 exist for water tank service contracts, procurement from economically disadvantaged persons, shared hospital or ambulance service purchasing, fuel contracts for generation of municipal power, procurement from rehabilitation facilities, energy efficient projects, solid waste contracts, and town road construction or maintenance contracts based on terms of county contracts for adjoining roads. If a contract you audit falls into one of these categories, review the relevant exceptions to see if its criteria are met. See Minn. Stat. §§ 471.345, subds. 5b, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 19; and 400.04.</li> </ul>			
§ 471.35	H Other Considerations			
	1. Specifications on contracts. If sealed bids were solicited, were the specifications written so as not to exclude all but one type or kind of supplies or equipment?			
	2. Interest in contract. (See Conflicts of Interest Section, page 2-1.)			
§ 574.26	3. Contractor's performance and payment bonds. Contractors doing public work are required to give both a performance bond and a payment bond in an amount not less than the contract price if the contract is more than \$100,000.			
	a. Were bonds received for all contracts greater than \$100,000?			
	b. Were the amounts sufficient?			
	Note: The contractor's performance and payment bond requirement does not apply to contracts for snow removal, ice removal, grading, or other similar routine road maintenance on town roads.			
§ 574.261, subd. 1a	Note: If the project is under \$50,000, contractor may provide for irrevocable bank letter of credit in place of a performance bond provided the letter of credit is subject to the same conditions as a performance bond.			
	For school district contracts limited to the purchase of a finished tangible product, <u>see</u> note in Part II.D., <u>infra</u> .			
§ 471.6161	I Group Insurance			
	Any political subdivision that provides group insurance for 25 or more employees must comply with certain bidding requirements in contracting for or renewing said insurance.			
	1. Was the request for proposals (RFP) in writing?			
	2. Did the RFP include:			
	a. the coverage to be provided;			
	b. the criteria for evaluation of proposals; and			
	c. the aggregate claims record for the appropriate period?			

**CONTRACTING - BID LAWS** 

Workpaper

Minn. Stat.

Minn. Stat. Section	CONTRACTING - BID LAWS	Yes	No	Workpape Reference
	3. Was the RFP notice placed in a newspaper or trade journal at least 21 days before the final date for submitting proposals?			
	4. Was a written rationale explaining the political subdivision's decision prepared prior to entering into a contract?			
	5. Was the term of the contract five years or less, including extensions?			
§ 471.3455	JPublic Safety Equipment Purchase or Lease (for statutory or home rule charter cities, counties, towns, special taxing districts or any other political subdivision that acquires public safety equipment.)			
	If equipment was acquired pursuant to this statute without competitive bidding or proposals:			
	1. Was the public safety equipment <u>used</u> , <u>and</u>			
	<ol> <li>was the equipment "public safety equipment," defined as vehicles and specialized equipment used by a fire department, as defined in Minn. Stat. § 299N.01, subdivision 2, in firefighting, ambulance and emergency medical treatment services, rescue, and hazardous materials response, <u>and</u></li> </ol>			
	3. was the equipment clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of supply?			
	Part II. Laws Relating to Specific Municipalities			
§ 375.21, subd. 1; for Road Construction Contracts, <u>see also</u> § 160 17	Part II. Laws Relating to Specific Municipalities  A Counties .			
subd. 1; for Road Construction Contracts,				
subd. 1; for Road Construction Contracts, <u>see also</u>	A Counties         .         1. Advertisement for Bids. (For sales of personal property, see 2, below.) If the			
subd. 1; for Road Construction Contracts, <u>see also</u>	A Counties         .         1.         Advertisement for Bids. (For sales of personal property, see 2, below.) If the contract was awarded by bidding:         a.         Were bids advertised for in a qualified legal newspaper of the county?			
subd. 1; for Road Construction Contracts, <u>see also</u>	A Counties         .         1. Advertisement for Bids. (For sales of personal property, see 2, below.) If the contract was awarded by bidding:         a. Were bids advertised for in a qualified legal newspaper of the county? (For alternative methods, see section I.D., above.)         b. If the contract is for the purchase of property or for work and labor, was the public notice, stating time and place for bids, published two			
subd. 1; for Road Construction Contracts, <u>see also</u>	A Counties         .         1.       Advertisement for Bids. (For sales of personal property, see 2, below.) If the contract was awarded by bidding:         a.       Were bids advertised for in a qualified legal newspaper of the county? (For alternative methods, see section I.D., above.)         b.       If the contract is for the purchase of property or for work and labor, was the public notice, stating time and place for bids, published two weeks prior to the deadline?         c.       If the contract is for the construction or repair of roads, bridges, or buildings, was the public notice, stating time and place for bids,			

	a. If the County sold personal property, the value of which is estimated to be \$15,000 or more:
	(1) Were bids or proposals advertised in the county's official newspaper, on the county's Web site, or in a recognized industry trade journal?
	<ul> <li>(2) If the County posted on its Web site or published in a trade journal, did the county publish, either in minutes or separately, in the official newspaper a summary of all requests for bids or proposals that the county advertises on its Web site or in the trade journal?</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>(3) Did the county publish in the official newspaper, on the Web site or in a trade journal before it solicited or accepted bids or proposals by the electronic selling process authorized in Minn. Stat. § 471.345, subd. 17?</li> </ul>
§ 375.21, subd. 1	3. Awarding the Contract. (For contracts awarded by bidding.)
	a. Was the contract awarded to the lowest responsible bidder?
	b. If the contract was not awarded to the lowest bidder, were reasonable and appropriate reasons documented in the minutes?
	c. Were the names of the bidders and the amount of the bids put on record?
	d. Was the contract executed in writing?
<u>See also</u> § 574.26	e. If the contract involved work and labor for the construction or repair of roads, bridges, or buildings, was a faithful performance bond received from the contractor?
§ 375.21	4. Emergency Exceptions to bidding.
	a. In case of an emergency arising from the destruction or impassability of road or bridges by floods, rain or snow, or other casualty, or the breaking or damaging of any property in the county if the public health, safety, or welfare would suffer by delay, contracts for purchase or repairs may be made without advertising for bids; but, in that case, the action of the board shall be recorded in its official proceedings.
§ 375.22	<ul> <li>b. In case of an emergency arising from breakage, damage, or decay in county property that cannot be allowed to wait for the time required to advertise for bids, repairs may be made without advertising for bids if the work is authorized by a majority of the board of county commissioners and the action is ratified and recorded in the official proceedings of the board at its next meeting.</li> </ul>
	c. If any emergency exceptions were taken by the county, were the required board actions recorded in the official proceedings?
§ 373.01, subd. 1	5. Sale of Real Property.

Minn. Stat. Section

Minn. Stat. Section	CONTRACTING - BID LAWS	Ye	s	No	Workpape Reference
	a. If the county sold real property by advertising for bids:				
	a. If the county sold real property by advertising for blus.				
	(1) Were bids advertised for in the official newspaper of the county for three consecutive weeks? (For alternative methods, <u>see</u> section I.D., above.)				
	(2) Were bids advertised at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the area where the property is located?				
	(3) Did the notice contain the time and place for considering proposals as well as a legal description of the real property involved?				
	(4) Was the real property sold to the highest bidder?				
	If no, were reasons documented in the minutes and were the reasons stated reasonable and appropriate?				
	b. If the county employed a broker to sell the property;				
	(1) Had the property remained unsold after advertising for and consideration of bids or proposals?				
	(2) Did the broker sell the property for not less than 90 percent of its appraised market value as determined by the county?				
	(3) Was the broker's fee paid from the proceeds of the sale, and did it not exceed ten percent of the sale price?				
	c. If the county sold real property without advertising for bids or employing a broker:				
	(1) Did the county own the real property in fee simple and could it not be improved because of noncompliance with local ordinances regarding minimum area, shape, frontage, or access?				
	(2) Were all owners of adjoining land given written notice at least 30 days before the sale?				
§ 103E.705, subd. 5	6. Drainage Systems.				
	a. If the estimated cost of repairs and maintenance of one drainage system for one year will be less than the greater of \$100,000, or \$1,000 per mile of open ditch in the ditch system, the drainage authority may have such work done without advertising for bids or entering into a contract. Were these conditions met?				
§ 412.311	B Statutory Cities				
	1. Advertisement for Bids.				
	a. Was the request for bids published at least once in the official newspaper? (For alternative methods, see section I.D., above.)				

		b. Was the notice published at least ten days in advance of the last date for submission of bids?		
§§ 365.37; 415.01	2.	If there was no notice given or sealed bids solicited, did a special emergency exist?		
		(A special emergency is a situation requiring immediate action essential to the health, safety, or welfare of the town.)		
	3.	Was the contract awarded to the lowest responsible bidder?		
	4.	If the contract was not awarded to the lowest bidder, were reasonable and appropriate reasons documented in the minutes?		
§ 365.37; for Road Construction Contracts, <u>see also</u> § 160.17	C Tow	vns		
	1.	Advertisement for Bids.		
		a. Was a public notice of the time and place to submit bids posted in the three most public places in the town for ten days or published for two weeks in a newspaper generally circulated in the town? (For alternative methods, see section I.D., above.)		
	2.	If there was no notice given or sealed bids solicited, did a special emergency exist? (A special emergency is a situation requiring immediate action essential to		
		the health, safety, or welfare of the town.)		
§ 365.37	3.	Was the contract awarded to the lowest responsible bidder?		
	4.	If the contract was not awarded to the lowest bidder, were reasonable and appropriate reasons documented in the minutes?		
§ 123B.52, subd. 1	D Sch	ools (For contracts awarded by bidding)		
	1.	Advertisement for Bids.		
		a. Was two weeks published notice of the request for bids made in the official newspaper? (For alternative methods, see Section I.D., above.)		
		b. Did the notice state the time and place for submitting bids?		
		c. Did the notice include a brief description of the subject matter?		
§ 123B.52, subd. 1	2.	Awarding the Contract.		
	1	a. Was the contract awarded to the lowest responsible bidder?		

	b. If the contract was not awarded to the lowest bidder, were
	reasonable and appropriate reasons documented in the minutes?
	c. Was the contract executed in writing?
	c. Was the contract executed in writing.
	d. Was a faithful performance bond received from the contractor?
	Note: If the contract is limited to the purchase of a finished tangible product, the
	board may require, at its discretion, a performance bond in the amount it deems
	necessary.
§ 123B.52, subd. 1	3. Are records retained on all bids with:
5000.1	
	a. the names of the bidders;
	b. the amounts of the bids;
	c. an indication as to the successful bidder?
8 102D 50	
§ 123B.52, subd. 1a	4. If a project labor agreement is used to construct or repair a facility:
subu. Ta	
	a. Did the school board adopt at a public meeting a written resolution
	authorizing the project labor agreement? And
	b. Did the school board publish notice of the meeting in the district's
	official newspaper at least 30 days in advance?
§ 123B.52,	5. Tie Low Bids or Single Bids.
subd. 1	
	a. In the case of identical low bids from two or more bidders, the board
	may, at its discretion, utilize negotiated procurement methods with the
	tied low bidders for that particular transaction, so long as the price paid does not exceed the low tied bid price.
	does not exceed the low field old price.
	(1) If there were any tie low bids, was the ultimate price paid less
	than or equal to the tie low bid price?
	b. In the case where only a single bid is received, the board may, at its
	discretion, negotiate a mutually agreeable contract with the bidder so
	long as the price paid does not exceed the original bid.
	(1) If there were any cases of single bids, was the ultimate price
	paid less than or equal to the bid?
§ 123B.52,	6. Direct Negotiated Contracts.
§ 125B.52, subds.	
1 & 3	
	a. Contracts for the purchase of perishable foods. Perishable food items
	(except milk for school lunches and vocational training programs) in
	any amount may be made by direct negotiation with two or more
	any amount may be made by direct negotiation with two or more quotations received without advertising for bids. Were written quotations received and were they kept on file for at least one year?

4-11

Minn. Stat.	CONTRACTING - BID LAWS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference

		b. Contracts for transportation/fuel. A contract for transportation of school children or for the purchase of petroleum heating fuel or fuel for vehicles may be made by direct negotiation by obtaining two or more written quotations when possible or on sealed bids.		
		(1) If a contract was made by direct negotiations, were quotations requested by published notice at least 30 days before the contract was awarded?		
		(2) Were written quotes received and were all quotations kept on file for at least one year?		
§ 123B.52, subd. 6	7.	School District Surplus Computers Exception.		
		If the school district disposed of a surplus school computer and related equipment without complying with the competitive bidding requirements of Minn. Stat. § 471.345:		
		Did the school district dispose of the surplus computer and related equipment by conveying the property and title to another school district, the State Department of Corrections, the board of trustees of the Minnesota state colleges and universities, or the family of a student residing in the district whose total family income meets the federal definition of poverty?		

# 

**CLAIMS AND DISBURSEMENTS** 

# LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

# CLAIMS AND DISBURSEMENTS

## **Introduction**

Municipal transactions involving an account, claim, or demand made for any property or service which can be itemized in the ordinary course of business and disbursements of municipal funds are covered in this section.

"Municipality" for the purposes of this section means a county; local social services agency; county board of education for unorganized territory; school district; charter school; town or home rule charter city of the second, third, or fourth class; or park district. This section also applies to statutory cities.

In addition, Minn. Stat. § 471.425 (Prompt Payment of Local Government Bills), applies to any home rule charter or statutory city, county, town, school district, political subdivision, or agency of local government. It also applies to the Metropolitan Council and any board or agency created under Minn. Stat. ch. 473.

Minn. Stat. Section

		Part I. General Provisions - For Municipalities	 	
§ 471.38, subd. 1	A.	Has every person or the person's agent claiming payment put such claim in writing (which includes an electronic transaction record) by items?		
	В.	Has each declaration for payment (described below) been signed to the effect that such account, claim, or demand is just and correct and that no part of it has been paid?		
§ 471.38, subd. 2		Note: The provisions of this section do not apply to any claim or demand for an annual salary or fees of jurors or witnesses, fixed by law, nor to the salary or wages of any employee whose salary or wages have been fixed on an hourly, daily, weekly, or monthly basis, by the governing board of the municipality, and which is now authorized by law to be paid on a payroll basis.		
§ 471.391, subd. 1		Declaration Form - The declaration is sufficient if in the following form: "I declare under the penalties of law that this account, claim or demand is just and correct and that no part of it has been paid."		
		(Signature of Claimant)		
§ 471.391, subd. 2		The check or order-check by which the claim is paid may have printed on its reverse side, above the space for endorsement thereof, the following statement: "The undersigned payee, in endorsing this check (or order-check) declares that the same is received in payment of a just and correct claim against the county (county board of education for unorganized territory, school district, town or city), and that no part of it has heretofore been paid." When endorsed by the payee named in the check or order-check, such statement shall operate and shall be deemed sufficient as the required declaration of the claim.		
§ 471.392	C.	Any person who willfully and falsely makes the declaration provided for is guilty of a felony.		
§ 471.425, subd. 2	D.	Prompt Payment of Local Government Bills		
		- Standard payment period is:		
		- 35 days from receipt for governing boards that meet at least once a month;		
		- 45 days from receipt of goods or services or invoice, whichever is later, for governing boards that do not meet at least once per month; and		
		- 45 days from receipt for joint powers entities.		
§ 471.425, subd. 2		1. Were all bills paid within the time period set by the terms of the contract or within the standard payment period?		
§ 471.425, subd. 4		- The government entity must pay interest on bills not paid in a timely manner. The interest rate is 1½ percent per month or part of a month. The minimum monthly interest on a bill of \$100 or more is \$10.		

Minn. Stat.		CLAIMS AND DISBURSEMENTS		ŊŢ	Workpaper
Section			Yes	No	Reference
§ 471.425, subd. 4	]	For bills paid after the time period set by the contract or the standard payment period, did the government entity calculate and pay interest as required by law?			
§ 471.425, subd. 4a	1	Did each contract between the government entity and a prime contractor require the prime contractor to pay subcontractors within ten days of receipt of payment from the government entity or pay interest at the rate of 1½ percent per month or any part of a month?			
		Note: The interest penalties in these questions do not apply to good faith disputes.			

§ 471.381	Part II. Electronic or Wire Transfer Cities, Towns, and Counties							
	А.	If the city, town, or county used electronic or wire transfers to pay claims or make investments:						
		1. Were the electronic identifiers used to authenticate or validate this government action approved by the governing board?						
		2. Had the city, town, or county established policies and procedures to ensure the validity of the electronic approvals?						
§ 385.071		3. In the case of a county, did the county board establish policies and procedures for investment and expenditure transactions by electronic transfer?						

	Part III. Claims and Disbursements - Statutory Cities					
§ 412.271, subd. 1	A.	For all disbursements made on orders, were the orders drawn by the mayor and clerk upon the treasurer?				
	B.	Have all claims been audited and allowed by the city council, <u>except</u> when issued for payment of judgments, salaries, and wages previously fixed by the council or by statute, principal and interest on obligations, rent and other fixed charges, the exact amount of which has been previously determined by contract authorized by the council or as provided in E and F below, or if the city has delegated authority to approve claims under Minn. Stat. § 412.271, subd. 8?				
§ 412.271, subd. 2	C.	Claims and Payment				
		1. Payroll				
		a. If the city used an electronic time recording system, did the governing body adopt policies to ensure that the timekeeping and payroll methods used are accurate and reliable?				
		b. If the city did not use an electronic time recording system:				
		(1) Has the clerk maintained a payroll record giving the name of each employee and the number of hours or days worked by each?				

Minn. Stat. Section	CLAIMS AND DISBURSEMENTS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
	(2) Has the timekeeper, supervisor, or other officers or employees having knowledge of the facts, signed a declaration indicating the facts recited on the payroll are correct to the best of the declarant's information and belief?			
	(3) Have the claims for payroll been signed in proper form or declaration under Minn. Stat. § 412.271, subd. 2?			
	2. Other claims for payment for goods or services.			
	a. Was the claim prepared in written items (where possible in the ordinary course of business)?			
	b. Has a declaration for payment been signed that the claim is just and correct and no part of it has been paid, <u>or</u> was the declaration made by endorsement as provided in Minn. Stat. § 412.271, subd. 3?			
§ 412.271, subd. 3	D. Endorsement of Claims			
	1. Has the clerk endorsed each claim with either "disallowed" or "allowed in the sum of \$," if approved in whole or in part and specifying the items rejected, if any?			
	2. Has each order been drawn so that when signed by the treasurer it became a check?			
	3. Has each order presented to the treasurer and not paid for want of funds been so marked and paid in order of its presentation with interest from the date of presentation?			
§ 412.271, subd. 4	E. Immediate Payment of Claims			
	1. Have all claims based on contract paid prior to a council meeting been signed by a majority of the council and formally approved at the next council meeting?			
§ 412.271, subd. 5	F. Imprest Funds			
	1. Has a custodian been appointed for each imprest fund?			
	2. Has money for the imprest fund been transferred from the general fund?			
	3. Have all claims been itemized and presented to the council at the next council meeting after payment has been made?			
	4. Has the council issued orders covering imprest fund claims?			
	5. Have all claims been approved in full and/or has the custodian replaced the difference for which he or she is personally responsible?			

	Part IV. Independent Board PowersStatutory Cities (Utility & Park Boards)
§ 412.271, subd. 6	A. Has any independent board, which is authorized to disburse funds without the approval of the council, met the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 412.271, subds. 4 and 5 (found as Part III.E. and III.F., above)?
	Note: In reviewing the above subdivisions with regard to independent boards, the term "council" shall be considered to be the "board or commission" and the money for the fund may be obtained from any undedicated fund under its jurisdiction.

	Part V. Claims and Disbursements - Counties	
§ 384.13	For all disbursements made on warrants:	
	A. Was the claim paid by the county treasurer upon allowance of the county board, upon the warrant of the board chair, attested by the county auditor; <u>or</u>	
	B. Was the claim paid upon the warrant of the auditor, upon the proper certificate of the person, officer, or tribunal allowing the claim in cases in which the precise amount was fixed by law, or authorized to be fixed by some other person, officer, or tribunal, was the claim?	
	C. If the county population was 150,000 or less, was each warrant so drawn that when signed by the treasurer it becomes a check on the county depository?	

		Part VI. Delegation of Authority to Pay Claims - Counties and Statutory Ci	ties	
§§ 412.271, subd. 8, & 375.18, subd. 1b	A.	Did the county board or city council delegate its authority to pay certain claims made against the county or city by adopting a resolution authorizing a specified county or city administrative official to pay the claims that meet the standards and procedures established by the board or council?		
	B.	Does the county board or city council have adequate internal accounting and administrative control procedures to ensure the proper disbursement of public funds, including regular and frequent review of the county or city administrative officials' actions by the board or council?		
	C.	Was a list of all claims paid under the procedures established by the county board or city council presented to the board or council at the next regularly scheduled meeting after payment of the claim? <u>and</u>		
		1. In the case of a city, is the city one which prepares annual audited financial statements which have been attested to by an independent certified public accountant, public accountant, or the state auditor? <u>or</u>		
		2. In the case of a county, is the county not a home rule charter county for which the county charter provides an alternative method of paying claims?		

Minn. Stat.	CLAIMS AND DISBURSEMENTS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference

	Part VII. Client-Directed Support Program - For Counties	
§ 375.18, subd. 1c	<ul> <li>A. If the county has implemented a client-directed support program that authorizes responsible parties for county human services and public health clients to expend public funds for the benefit of the clients without complying with Minn. Stat. §§ 375.18, subd. 1b; 384.13; 471.38; or 471.391:</li> </ul>	
	1. Was the program implemented by the county board upon approval by the department of human services?	
	2. Does the county board have internal accounting and administrative control procedures to ensure proper disbursement of public funds?	
	3. Do these procedures include county-owned demand deposit accounts and periodic review of the program by the county board?	

§§ 471.38,	A.	School districts may make electronic funds transfers under certain conditions.		
subds. 3 and 3a				
		1. A school district may make electronic funds transfers for:		
		a. a claim for payment from an imprest payroll bank account or investment of excess money;		
		b. payment of tax or aid anticipation certificates;		
		c. payment of contributions to a pension or retirement fund;		
		d. vendor payments; and		
		e. payment of bond principal, bond interest, and a fiscal agent service charge from the debt redemption fund.		
	В.	Did the school district use electronic funds transfers only for the above enumerated transactions?		
	C.	Did the school district enact a plan containing the following policy controls requiring:		
		1. annual delegation of authority to make electronic funds transfers to a designated business administrator?		
		2. the disbursing bank to keep a certified copy of delegation of authority?		
		3. identification of the initiator of each electronic transfer?		
		4. the initiator to document the request and obtain approval for each transfer from the designated business administrator, prior to the transaction?		
		5. written confirmation of each transaction within one business day?		

Minn. Stat. Section		CLAIMS AND DISBURSEMENTS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
	6.	a list of transactions to be submitted to the school board at the next regular meeting after the transaction?			

§ 375.171	Part IX. Credit Card Purchases - For Counties							
	А.	If a county officer or employee made a purchase on behalf of the county by credit card:						
		1. Had the county board authorized the use of the credit card by the officer or employee;						
		2. Was the officer or employee otherwise authorized to make a purchase on behalf of the county; and						
		3. Did the purchase otherwise comply with all statutes, rules, or county policies applicable to county purchases?						
	B.	If a county officer or employee made a purchase by credit card that was not approved by the county board, was the officer or employee held personally liable for the amount of the purchase?						
§ 375.17	C.	If publishing of disbursement was required, were actual vendors providing goods and services to the public entity identified and not just the credit card company?						

§ 367.18	18 Part X. Claims and Disbursements – For Towns					
	A.	Were amounts paid on orders paid by the town treasurer, on the order of the town board, signed by the chair and countersigned by the clerk?				
		[Note: In towns with a clerk/treasurer, the clerk/treasurer need sign only once.				
	В.	Was each order drawn so that when signed by the treasurer or clerk/treasurer in an appropriate place, it becomes a check on the town depository?				

		Part XI. Payments With Credit Cards - For Cities, Towns and School Distri	cts	
§§ 471.382 & 123B.02, subd. 23	А.	If a city, town, or school district officer or employee made a purchase on behalf of the city, town, or school district by credit card:		
		1. Had the city council, town board, or school district authorized the use of the credit card by the officer or employee;		
		2. Was the officer or employee otherwise authorized to make a purchase on behalf of the city, town, or school district; and		
		3. Did the purchase otherwise comply with all statutes, rules, and city, town, or school district policies applicable to city, town, or school district purchases?		
	В.	If a city, town, or school district officer or employee made a purchase by credit card that was not approved by the city council, town board, or school district, was the officer or employee held personally liable for the amount of the purchase?		

#### Part XII. Audit Conclusion

The auditor must state a conclusion--based on this questionnaire and any other audit procedures performed--whether the client has complied with the legal provisions reviewed relating to claims and disbursements.

Conclusion:

**EXAMPLES OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS** 

# LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

# **EXAMPLES OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS**

Minnesota Legal Compliance	
Political Subdivisions (Other Than School Districts)	6-3
Political Subdivisions (Other Than School Districts)-Government Auditing Standards	6-4
School Districts	6-5
Charter Schools	6-6
Police and Fire Relief Associations	6-7
Combined Report	
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting	
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit	
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with	
Government Auditing Standards	6-8

Independent auditor's report for political subdivisions *other than school districts*. Includes separate paragraphs for cities or other political subdivisions; use just one of the two. (Note: Eliminate this paragraph from the report)

#### MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

#### Independent Auditor's Report

(Governing body) (Entity)

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements of *(list of opinion units)* of ______ as of and for the year ended ______, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated ______.

[Paragraph to be used for cities]

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing. Our audit considered all of the listed categories, ¹except that we did not test for compliance with the provisions for (identify area not tested) because (state reasons for excluding any areas.)

[Paragraph to be used for other local governments, other than schools]

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains six categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, and miscellaneous provisions. Our audit considered all of the listed categories, ²except that we did not test for compliance with the provisions for (identify area not tested) because (state reasons for excluding any areas from audit)

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that ______ failed to comply with the provisions of the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the ______'s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

This report is intended solely for the information and use those charged with governance and management of ______ and the State Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Independent auditor's report for political subdivisions, *other than school districts*, conducted under *Government Auditing Standards*. Includes separate paragraphs for cities and counties or other political subdivisions; use just one of the two. (Note: Eliminate this paragraph from the report.)

## MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

#### Independent Auditor's Report

(Governing body) (Entity)

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States the financial statements of *(list of opinion units)* of ______ as of and for the year ended ______, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated ______.

[Paragraph to be used for counties and cities]

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing. Our audit considered all of the listed categories, ³except that we did not test for compliance with the provisions for (identify area not tested) because (state reasons for excluding any areas from audit).

[Paragraph to be used for other local governments, other than schools]

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains six categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, and miscellaneous provisions. Our audit considered all of the listed categories, ⁴except that we did not test for compliance with the provisions for (identify area not tested) because (state reasons for excluding any areas from audit).

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that ______ failed to comply with the provisions of the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the ______'s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Independent auditor's report for *school districts*. (Note: Eliminate this paragraph from the report.)

# MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

# Independent Auditor's Report

(Governing body) (Entity)

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of *(list of opinion units)* of ______ as of and for the year ended ______, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated ______.

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and uniform financial accounting and reporting standards for school districts. Our audit considered all of the listed categories, ⁵except that we did not test for compliance with the provisions for (identify area not tested) because (state reasons for excluding any areas from audit)

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that ______ failed to comply with the provisions of the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the ______'s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Independent auditor's report for charter schools. (Note: Eliminate this paragraph from the report.)

# MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

#### Independent Auditor's Report

(Governing body) (Entity)

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of *(list of opinion units)* of ______ as of and for the year ended ______, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated _____.

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains two categories of compliance to be tested in audits of charter schools: uniform financial accounting and reporting standards, and charter schools.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that ______ failed to comply with the provisions of the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the ______'s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Independent auditor's report for *police and fire relief associations*. (Note: Eliminate this paragraph from the report.)

## MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

(Governing body) (Entity)

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements of *(list of opinion units)* of ______ as of and for the year ended ______, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated ______.

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains three categories of compliance to be tested in audits of relief associations: deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, and relief associations.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that ______ failed to comply with the provisions of the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the ______'s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

This report is intended solely for the information and use those charged with governance and management of ______ and the State Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Auditor's internal control and compliance report based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* and the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*. (Note: Eliminate this paragraph from the report.)

## REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor's Report

[governing body] [entity]

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of *(list related opinion units)* of ______ as of and for the year ended ______, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the ______ 's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated ______.

# **Internal Control over Financial Reporting***

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered ______'s internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the ______'s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the ______'s internal control over financial control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the ______''s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial control over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit the attention of those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in

internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters****

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ______'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### Minnesota Legal Compliance

#### [Paragraph to be used for counties and cities]

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing. "Our audit considered all of the listed categories, ⁶except that we did not test for compliance with the provisions for (identify area not tested) because (state reasons for excluding any areas from audit).

#### [Paragraph to be used for other local governments, other than schools]

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains six categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, and miscellaneous provisions. Our audit considered all of the listed categories, ⁷except that we did not test for compliance with the provisions for (identify area not tested) because (state reasons for excluding any areas from audit)

#### [Paragraph to be used for school districts]

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and uniform financial accounting and reporting standards for school districts. Our audit considered all of the listed categories, ⁸except that we did not test for compliance with the provisions for (identify area not tested) because (state reasons for excluding any areas from audit)

[Paragraph to be used for audits of charter schools] The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains two categories of compliance to be tested in audits of charter schools: uniform financial accounting and reporting standards, and charter schools.

#### [Paragraph to be used for police and fire relief associations]

The *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains three categories of compliance to be tested in audits of relief associations: deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, and relief associations.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that ______ failed to comply with the provisions of the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the ______'s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions. ***

_______'s responses to the internal control and legal compliance findings (*adjust as necessary for what they responded to*) identified in our audit have been included in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The ______'s responses were not subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the ______'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the ______'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

(Signature) (Date)

*paragraphs to be used when no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses are identified.

• If significant deficiencies, but no material weaknesses are identified, use the following wording:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered ______'s internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the _____'s internal

control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the ______''s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the ______'s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit the attention of those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies (a deficiency) in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item *(list item numbers)* that we consider to be significant deficiencies (a significant deficiency).

• If material weaknesses are identified, use the following wording:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered ______'s internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the [entity type]'s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the ______'s internal control over financial control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies (a deficiency) in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses (a material weakness) and significant deficiencies. (If no significant deficiencies, adjust last sentence.)

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial

reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the ______''s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, as items *[list finding numbers]* to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, as items *[list finding numbers]* to be significant deficiencies. **[Use this paragraph when there are also significant deficiencies that are not material weaknesses.]** 

**Paragraph to be used when there are no reportable instances of noncompliance or other matters.

• If instances of noncompliance are reported, use following wording:

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ______'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*, and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items (*list related finding reference numbers*).

***Paragraph when there are no legal findings.

• If legal compliance findings are reported, use the following wording:

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that _______ failed to comply with the provisions of the *Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions*, except as described in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items (*list related finding reference numbers*). However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the ______'s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

¹ If the rest of the sentence does not apply, put a period here and continue to the next paragraph. ² *Id.* ³ *Id.* ⁴ *Id.* ⁵ *Id.* ⁶ *Id.* ⁷ *Id.* ⁸ *Id.* 

# **RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS**

#### LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS

#### **Introduction**

For each of the different types of relief associations, the following checklist cites the primary statutory provisions applicable to relief associations:

#### Police Relief Associations

Minn. Stat. §§ 423A.01-.22

#### Salaried Firefighters' Relief Associations

Generally -	Minn. Stat. §§ 423A.0122 Minn. Stat. §§ 69.77, .80
Bloomington -	Minn. Stat. § 69.77; Minn. Stat., ch. 424 (2000) (to the extent applicable); <i>see</i> 2002 Minn. Laws, ch. 392, art. 1, § 7; 1965 Minn. Laws, ch. 446, as amended; <i>see</i> Minn. Stat. § 424A.001, subd. 4.

Volunteer Firefighters' Relief Associations

Minn. Stat. §§ 69.771-.776; Minn. Stat. § 69.80 Minn. Stat. §§ 424A.001-.10; Minn. Stat. §§ 424B.01-.21

Relief associations are also subject to the depository designation and collateralization requirements of Chapter 1 (Minn. Stat. §§ 356A.06, subd. 8a, and 118A.02-.03) and the Conflict of Interest provisions of Chapter 2 herein. Minn. Stat. § 6.495 requires the audit of both the special and general funds.

Relief associations are subject to their own bylaws and articles of incorporation, subject to statutory provisions. Therefore, a review of the bylaws and articles of incorporation, as well as applicable special laws, is essential to the legal compliance audit of the relief association. Special laws are found in Table 1 of Minnesota statutes.

		Part I. Special Fund/General Fund (For All Relief Associations)	 	
§§ 424A.05, 424.15 (2000), & 423.50 (2000)	А.	Were amounts paid to the relief association from the city and state (and for volunteer firefighters' relief associations' donations specified for support of the special fund) set aside and deposited in the special fund?		
§§ 424A.06, 424.15 (2000), & 423.50 (2000)	B.	Were all other funds deposited in the association's general fund, if established?		
§§ 349.12, subd. 25(b)(3), & 471.6151	C.	Were gambling proceeds <u>not</u> placed in the special fund?		
§§ 424A.05 & 423.51 (2000)	D.	Were <u>benefits</u> paid from the special fund only for:		
		1. In the case of volunteers firefighters' relief associations, the payment of disability and service pensions to members of the relief association;		
		2. for the purchase of an annuity for the transfer of benefit amounts to the applicable person's individual retirement account or Minnesota deferred compensation plan under Minn. Stat. § 424A.015;		
		<ol> <li>payment of survivor's benefits or death benefits to the estate of a deceased active or deferred firefighter as allowed by Minn. Stat. § 424A,05, subd. 4;</li> </ol>		
		4. for volunteer firefighters' relief associations, fees, dues, and assessments allowed by Minn. Stat. § 424A.05, subd. 3(7); or		
		5. in the case of a volunteer relief association, for the payment of insurance premiums to the state Volunteer Firefighters Benefit Association, or an insurance company licensed by the state of Minnesota offering casualty insurance, in order to entitle relief association members to membership in and the benefits of the association or organization; <u>and</u>		
		6. were disbursements authorized by the bylaws?		
		Note: For relief associations other than volunteer firefighters' relief associations, check the specific law that applies.		
§ 69.80	E.	Were <u>administrative expenses</u> from the special fund paid only as follows:		
		1. <u>office expenses</u> , including (but not limited to) rent, utilities, equipment, supplies, postage, periodical subscriptions, furniture, and fixtures;		
		2. salaries of the officers of the association or their designees, and salaries of the members of the board of trustees of the association if the salary amounts are approved by the government body of the entity that is responsible for meeting any minimum obligation under Minn. Stat. §§ 69.77, 69.772, or 69.773, and the itemized expenses of relief association officers and board members that are incurred as a result of fulfilling their responsibilities as administrators of the special fund;		

Minn. Stat.	RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
-				•

	3. tuition, registration fees, organizational dues, and other authorized expenses of officers or members of the board of trustees incurred attending educational conferences, seminars, or classes that relate to the administration of the relief association;	
	4. audit, actuarial, medical, legal, investment expenses, and performance evaluation expenses;	
	5. filing and application fees payable by the relief association to federal or other governmental entities;	
	6. reasonable and necessary expenses of officers, board of trustees, or their designees, actually paid and incurred;	
	<ul> <li>premiums on fiduciary liability insurance and official bonds for officers, members of the board of trustees, and employees of the relief association; and</li> </ul>	
	8. salaries of administrative personnel?	
§§ 69.80 (b), 424A.06	F. Were all other expenses paid from the general fund?	
	<ol> <li>In the case of a volunteer firefighters' relief association, were disbursements from the general fund made for a purpose authorized by the association's articles of incorporation or bylaws?</li> </ol>	
§ 69.80	G. If an expense is related to purposes of both funds, were the expenses properly allocated to each fund based on the benefits derived by such fund?	

§ 356A.06	Part II. Investments (Limited List)		
§ 356A.06, subd. 6	The following securities are proper investments for relief associations with pension assets with a market value of \$1,000,000 or less and which do not use:		
	<ul> <li>a registered investment advisor to invest at least 60 percent of its pension assets (market value);</li> </ul>		
	- the State Board of Investment (SBI) to invest at least 60 percent of its pension assets (market value); or		
	- a combination of a registered investment advisor and the SBI for at least 75 percent of its pension assets (market value). For relief associations that meet the above criteria, the following investments are permitted. For relief associations that do not meet the above criteria, go to Part III, <u>infra</u> .		
	A. Certificates of Deposit		
	If the fund invested in certificates of deposit, were they		
	1. fully insured or collateralized, and		

Minn. Stat.

Seetion			100	110	11010101100
		2. issued by a financial institution:			
		2. Issued by a maneral institution.			
		a. that is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or			
		Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation,			
		b. that is insured by the National Credit Union Administration, or			
		c. that is authorized to do business in the state and has deposited with			
		the chief financial officer of the plan sufficient marketable			
		securities as collateral in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 118A.03?			
	B.	If the fund invested in guaranteed investment contracts, were they limited to:			
	D.	If the fund invested in guaranteed investment contracts, were they minted to.			
		1. guaranteed investment contracts issued by insurance companies or banks			
		rated in the top four quality categories by a nationally recognized rating			
		agency, <u>or</u>			
		2. alternative guaranteed investment contracts where the underlying assets			
		were rated in the top four quality categories by a nationally recognized			
		rating agency?			
	C.	Savings Accounts			
		1. If the fund placed money in a savings account, was it fully insured by			
		federal agencies?			
§ 356A.06,	D.	Government-Backed Obligations			
subd. 6	D.	Government-Dacked Congations			
5464. 0		1. If the fund is invested in government obligations, were such obligations			
		bonds, notes, bills, mortgages and other evidences of indebtedness?			
		2. Were such government obligations:			
		ũ ũ			
		a. backed by the full faith and credit of the issuer; <u>or</u>			
		b. rated among the top four quality categories by a nationally			
		recognized rating agency?			
		3. Were such government obligations guaranteed or insured issues of:			
		a. the United States, one of its agencies, one of its instrumentalities,			
		<ul><li>or an organization created and regulated by an act of Congress;</li><li>b. the Dominion of Canada or one of its provinces if the principal</li></ul>			
		b. the Dominion of Canada or one of its provinces if the principal and interest are payable in United States dollars;			
		c. a state or one of its municipalities, political subdivisions,			
		agencies, or instrumentalities; or			
		d. any United States government-sponsored organization of which			
		the United States is a member if the principal and interest are			
		payable in United States dollars?			
	E.	Corporate Obligations	1		
		1. If the fund invested in corporate obligations, were they:			
		a. issued or guaranteed by a corporation organized under the laws of			
		the United States or any of its states, or the Dominion of Canada or			
		the United States or any of its states, or the Dominion of Canada or any of its provinces;			
		the United States or any of its states, or the Dominion of Canada or			
		<ul><li>the United States or any of its states, or the Dominion of Canada or any of its provinces;</li><li>b. with the principal and interest payable in U.S. dollars; and</li></ul>			
		the United States or any of its states, or the Dominion of Canada or any of its provinces;			

F.	Indirect Investment		
1.	<b>Note:</b> The fund may own the securities described above (A-E) directly or		
	through mutual funds, exchange-traded funds or unit trusts.		
	through mutual runds, exchange-traded runds of unit trusts.		
G.	Additional Authority for Mutual Funds and Exchange Traded Funds		
U.	Additional Autionity for Mutual Funds and Exchange Traded Funds		
	If the fund invested in mutual funds or exchange-traded funds that held		
	securities not authorized above (A-E), . were these securities held by the mutual fund or exchange-traded fund		
	authorized by Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 7, paragraphs (c) to (g), [see		
	Part III (Expanded List) below]; and		
	2. did the fund's total investment in mutual funds and exchange-traded		
	funds (excluding money market mutual funds and exchange-traded		
	funds) not exceed 75% of the assets of the special fund?		
H.	State Board of Investment		
	Note: In addition to other investment authority, relief associations can place		
	funds with the State Board of Investment.		
I.	Asset Mix		
	Were all of the fund's investments, including those in mutual funds, exchange-		
	traded funds, units trusts, and through the State Board of Investment consistent		
	with the asset mix limitation of Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 7 [see Part III		
	(Expanded List) below]?		
 J.	Were all of the association's investments permitted and in conformance with A		
	through I above?		
	-		

§§ 69.77, subd. 9, 69.775; & 356A.06	Part III. Investments (Expanded List)		
§ 356A.06, subds. 6 & 7	The following securities are proper investments for:		
	1. All relief associations with pension assets with a market value in excess of \$1,000,000; and		
	2. Those relief associations with pension assets with a market value of \$1,000,000 or less, provided that the association:		
	- uses the services of a registered or licensed investment advisor for the investment of at least 60 percent of its pension assets (market value);		
	- uses the services of the State Board of Investment (SBI) for the investment of at least 60 percent of its pension assets (market value); or		
	- uses a combination of services of an investment advisor and the SBI for the investment of at least 75 percent of its pension assets.		
	<b>Note:</b> These securities may be owned directly or through shares in exchange traded funds or mutual funds, or as units in a commingled trust, subject to any limitations specified on the expanded list.		
§ 356A.06, subd. 7	A. Government Obligations		

Minn. Stat.	RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS	N.		Workpap
Section		Yes	No	Reference
	1. If the fund invested in accomment obligations were there, hands notes			
	1. If the fund invested in government obligations, were they: bonds, notes,			
	bills, mortgages, or other evidences of indebtedness backed by the full			
	faith and credit of the issuer <u>or</u> rated among the top four quality rating			
	categories by a nationally recognized rating agency?			
	2. Were the government obligations guaranteed or insured issues of:			
	a. the United States, one of its agencies or one of its instrumentalities,			
	or an organization created and regulated by an act of Congress;			
	b. the Dominion of Canada or one of its provinces;			
	c. a state or one of its municipalities, political subdivisions, agencies or			
	instrumentalities; or			
	d. a United States government-sponsored organization of which the United States is a member?			
	Note: Principle and interest must be payable in United States dollars.			
	B. Below Investment-Grade Corporate Obligations			
	For investments in corporate obligations that were not rated in the top four			
	quality categories by a nationally recognized rating agency:			
	1. Did the aggregate value of these obligations not exceed five percent of the market value of the association's special fund?			
	2. Did the association's participation not exceed 50% of any single offering? and			
	3. Did the association's participation not exceed 25% of any issuer's obligations that are not rated in the top four quality categories?			
	C. Investment-Grade Corporate Obligations			
	Were all other corporate obligations rated among the top four quality categories			
	by a nationally recognized rating agency?			
	D. Other Obligations			
	1. If the association invested in bankers' acceptances or deposit notes, were they issued by United States banks rated in the highest four quality categories by a nationally recognized rating agency?			
	2. If the association invested in certificates of deposit (CDs), were the CDs:			
	a. issued by United States banks or savings institutions rated in the			
	highest four quality categories by a nationally recognized rating agency, <u>or</u> whose certificates of deposit were fully insured by federal			
	agencies; or			
	b. issued by credit unions in amounts within the limit of insurance			
	coverage provided by the National Credit Union Administration?			
	3. If the association invested in commercial paper, was it issued by a United			
	States corporation or its Canadian subsidiary and was it rated in the			
	highest two quality categories by a nationally recognized rating agency?			

Minn. Stat.	
Section	

Yes

4.       If the association invested in mortgage or asset-backed securities, were they rated in the top four quality categories by a nationally recognized rating agency?         5.       Minnesota Housing Finance Agency       Image: Comparison of the term of the term of any pool of residential mortgages, were they:         (1)       not in defaulf; and       Image: Comparison of the term of any pool of residential mortgages, were they:         (1)       not in defaulf; and       Image: Comparison of the term of any sourd of residential mortgage, were they:         (1)       not in defaulf; and       Image: Comparison of the term of any sourd of residential mortgage to most the outstanding and not in default that have been made or purchased from the proceeds of the bonds or notes:         (1)       was the specified future date not more than 12 years from the date of the issue?         (1)       was the specified future date not more than 12 years from the most and privileges, and any suparameted rate of return?         (1)       did the agreement cover the period of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any suparameted rate of return?         (2)       If the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:         a.       letters of credit; or         b.       securities that the relief association could have directly invested in?         If the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts where the underfying asset complied with the requirements of Minn. Stat. \$ 56A.06, subd. 7? </th <th>Section</th> <th>I</th> <th>Tes</th> <th>INO</th> <th>Reference</th>	Section	I	Tes	INO	Reference
a.       If the association purchased from the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency all or part of any pool of residential mortgages, were they:       Image: Comparison of the Agency all or part of any pool of residential mortgages, were they:         (1)       not in default; and       Image: Comparison of the Agency all or part of any pool of residential mortgages, were they:       Image: Comparison of the Agency at the time of an issue of bonds or notes, to purchase at a specified future date, the amount of mortgage loans then outstanding and not in default that have been made or purchased from the proceeds of the bonds or notes:       Image: Comparison of the Agency at the time of the Agency of the Agency of the Sociation entered into agreements with the agency for the investment of any portion of the funds of the agency;       Image: Comparison of the Agency of t		they rated in the top four quality categories by a nationally recognized			
Agency all or part of any pool of residential mortgages, were they:       Image: Content of the second of the second of the second of the agency?         Image: Content of the second of the agency?       Image: Content of the second of the agency at the time of an issue of bonds or notes, to purchase at a specified future date, the amount of morgage loans then outstanding and not in default that have been made or purchased from the proceeds of the bonds or notes:         Image: Content of the second of the second of the investment of the second of the investment of any portion of the funds of the agency?       Image: Content of the second of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed rate of return?         Image: Content of the second of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed rate of return?       Image: Content of the second of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed rate of return?         Image: Content of the second of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:       Image: Content of the second of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed investment;         Image: Content of the second of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed investment;       Image: Content of the second of the investment;         Image: Content of the second of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts;       Image: Content of the second of the investment;         Image: Content of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts;       Image: Content of the investment;       Image: Content of the investment;         Image: Content of the association invested in any guaranteed		5. Minnesota Housing Finance Agency			
intermediation       intermediation         intermediation       intermedia		(1) not in default; and			
b.       If the association entered into a commitment with the agency, at the time of an issue of bonds or notes, to purchase at a specified future date, the amount of mortgage loans then outstanding and not in default that have been made or purchased from the proceeds of the bonds or notes:         (1)       was the specified future date not more than 12 years from the date of the issue?         (1)       was the specified future date not more than 12 years from the date of the issue?         (1)       was the specified future date not more than 12 years from the investment of any portion of the funds of the agency:         (1)       did the agreement cover the period of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed rate of return?         6.       If the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:         a.       letters of credit; or         b.       securities that the relief association could have directly invested in?         7.       If the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:         a.       were they alternative guaranteed investment contracts.         a.       were they alternative guaranteed investment contracts where the underlying assets complied with the requirements of Minn. Stat. \$ 56A.06, subd. ??         b.       were they alternative guaranteed investment contracts.         a.       were they alternative guaranteed investment contracts.         a.       were they alternative guaranteed investment contracts. <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>					
date of the issue?Image: Constraint of the issue?Image: Constraint of the issue?Image: Constraint of the issue?Image: Constraint of the investment of any portion of the funds of the agency:Image: Constraint of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed rate of return?Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:Image: Constraint of the association could have directly invested in?Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guarantee investment contracts:Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guarantee investment contracts where the underlying assets complied with the requirements of Minn. Stat. \$ 56A.06, subd. 7?Image: Constraint of the fund invested in guaranty fund certificates, surplus notes, or debentures, were they issued by a domestic mutual insurance company?Image: Do: Corporate StocksImage: Constraint of the fund on the stock or convertible issues of a corporation, image: Constraint on the stock or convertible issues of a corporation, image: C		<ul> <li>b. If the association entered into a commitment with the agency, at the time of an issue of bonds or notes, to purchase at a specified future date, the amount of mortgage loans then outstanding and not in default that have been made or purchased from the proceeds of the</li> </ul>			
investment of any portion of the funds of the agency:       Image: Constraint of any portion of the funds of the agency:         (1)       did the agreement cover the period of the investment, withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed rate of return?       Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:       Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:       Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:       Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:       Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements, were they collateralized with:       Image: Constraint of the association entered into any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements in the rediffication invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:       Image: Constraint of the association entered investment contracts:       Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts where the underlying assets complied with the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 56A.06, subd. 7?       Image: Constraint of the fund put assets in a savings account, was the account fully insured by a federal agency?       Image: Constraint of the association invested in the stock or convertible issues of a corporation, image: Constraint of the association invested in the stock or convertible issues of a corporation, image: Constraint of the following:       Image: Constraint of the following:         Image: Constraint at least one of the following:       Image: Con					
withdrawal privileges, and any guaranteed rate of return?       Image: Comparison of the second of the					
agreements, were they collateralized with:       Image: Collateralized with:       Image: Collateralized with:         a.       letters of credit; or       Image: Collateralized with:       Image: Collateralized with:         b.       securities that the relief association could have directly invested in?       Image: Collateralized with:       Image: Collateralized with:         7.       If the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:       Image: Collateralized with the program of the					
Image: Constraint of the system of the sys					
Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:       Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:       Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:       Image: Constraint of the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts where the underlying assets complied with the requirements of Minn. Stat. \$ 56A.06, subd. 7?       Image: Constraint of the association invested in guaranty fund certificates, surplus notes, or debentures, were they issued by a domestic mutual insurance company?       Image: Constraint of the association invested in the stock or convertible issues of a corporation, invested in the stock or convertible issues of a corporation, image: Constraint of the following:       Image: Constraint of the following:         Image: Constraint of the constraint of the association at least one of the following:       Image: Constraint of the following:       Image: Constraint of the following:		a. letters of credit; or			
a.       were they issued by an insurance company or bank rated in the top four quality categories by a nationally recognized rating agency; or       Image: Comparison of the top four quality categories by a nationally recognized rating agency; or         b.       were they alternative guaranteed investment contracts where the underlying assets complied with the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 56A.06, subd. 7?       Image: Comparison of Minn. Stat. § 56A.06, subd. 7?         8.       If the fund put assets in a savings account, was the account fully insured by a federal agency?       Image: Comparison of Minn. Stat. § 56A.06, subd. 7?         9.       If the fund invested in guaranty fund certificates, surplus notes, or debentures, were they issued by a domestic mutual insurance company?       Image: Comparison of Minn. Stat. § 56A.06, subd. 7?         D.       Corporate Stocks       Image: Comparison of the following:       Image: Comparison of		b. securities that the relief association could have directly invested in?			
four quality categories by a nationally recognized rating agency; or       Image: Comparison of Compar		7. If the association invested in any guaranteed investment contracts:			
underlying assets complied with the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 56A.06, subd. 7?Image: State of Minn Stat. Stat.Image: State of Minn Stat. Stat.8. If the fund put assets in a savings account, was the account fully insured by a federal agency?Image: State of Minn Stat.Image: State of Minn Stat.9. If the fund invested in guaranty fund certificates, surplus notes, or debentures, were they issued by a domestic mutual insurance company?Image: State of Minn State of Minn StateImage: State of Minn StateD. Corporate StocksImage: State of Minn StateImage: State of Minn StateImage: State of Minn StateIf the association invested in the stock or convertible issues of a corporation,Image: State of Minn StateImage: State of Minn StateImage: State of Minn State1. Was the corporation at least one of the following:Image: State of Minn StateImage: State of Minn StateImage: State of Minn State					
by a federal agency?       Image: Constraint of the fund invested in guaranty fund certificates, surplus notes, or debentures, were they issued by a domestic mutual insurance company?       Image: Constraint of the fund invested in guaranty fund certificates, surplus notes, or debentures, were they issued by a domestic mutual insurance company?         D.       Corporate Stocks       Image: Constraint of the fund invested in the stock or convertible issues of a corporation,         If the association invested in the stock or convertible issues of a corporation,       Image: Constraint of the full of the		underlying assets complied with the requirements of Minn. Stat.			
debentures, were they issued by a domestic mutual insurance company?       Image: Comparison of the stock of					
If the association invested in the stock or convertible issues of a corporation,     Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,       Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,     Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,       Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,     Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,       Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,     Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,       Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,     Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,       Image: Convertible issues of the following:     Image: Convertible issues of a corporation,		debentures, were they issued by a domestic mutual insurance company?			
1. Was the corporation at least one of the following:		-	<u> </u>		
a. organized under the laws of the United States or any of its states;					
		a. organized under the laws of the United States or any of its states;			

Section		Yes	No	Reference
	b. organized under the laws of the Dominion of Canada or any of its	Т		
	provinces; or			
	c. listed on an exchange that is regulated by an agency of the United States or of the Canadian national government?			
	2. Did the investments never exceed five percent of the total outstanding shares of any one corporation, (except that an expanded list plan may hold up to 20% of the shares of a real estate investment trust and up to 20% of the shares of a closed mutual fund)?			
	E. Other Investments			
	1. The association may invest in the following investments, subject to the restrictions below:			
	a. <u>Equity and debt investment businesses</u> through participation in limited partnerships, trusts, private placements, limited liability corporations, limited liability companies, limited liability partnerships, and corporations;			
	<ul> <li><u>Real estate ownership interests or loans</u> secured by mortgages or deeds of trust or shares of real estate investment trusts through investment in <u>limited partnerships</u>, <u>bank-sponsored collective funds</u>, <u>trusts</u>, <u>mortgage participation agreements</u>, and insurance company <u>commingled accounts</u>, including separate accounts;</li> </ul>			
	c. <u>Resource</u> investments through <u>limited partnerships</u> , <u>private</u> <u>placements</u> , <u>limited liability corporations</u> , <u>limited liability companies</u> , <u>limited liability partnerships</u> , and <u>corporations</u> ; and			
	d. International securities.			
	2. If the association invested in any of the above-enumerated investments (III.E.1):			
	a. did the aggregate value of the II.E.1.(a), (b) and (c) investments equal 35 percent or less of market value of the fund?			
	b. were there <u>at least</u> four unrelated owners of the investment (other than the covered pension plan) made under III.1.(a), (b), and (c)?			
	c. did the association's participation in an investment vehicle equal 20 percent or less for investments made under III.1.(a), (b), and (c)?			
	d. did the association's limited partnership participation and activity <u>not</u> create general liability on the part of the association?			
	e. did the association's investment in emerging market equity and international debt combined <u>not</u> exceed 15% of the associations' special fund market value?			
§ 356A.06, subd. 7a	J. Options and Future Contracts			

Yes

	If the association invested in any put and call options or future contracts, were they:	
	1. related to those securities that are proper direct investments for the association;	
§ 356A.06, subd. 7(b)	2. traded on a contract market regulated by a governmental agency or by a financial institution regulated by a governmental agency;	
§ 356A.06, subd. 7a	3. was the agreement entered into with a fully offsetting amount of cash or securities; and	
	<ul> <li>4. were only securities authorized by Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, <u>excluding</u> those under Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 7(h)(1)(i) - (iv), accepted as collateral or offsetting securities?</li> </ul>	
	K. If the relief association entered into an agreement to lend securities:	
	<ol> <li>was the agreement concurrently collateralized with cash or securities with a market value of at least 100 percent of the market value of the loaned securities; and</li> </ol>	
	2. were only securities authorized by Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, <u>excluding</u> those under Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 7(h)(i) - (iv), accepted as collateral?	
	<ul> <li>L. Did the aggregate value of the association's investments under Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 7 (g) [corporate stocks], Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 7 (h) [other investments] and equity investments under Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 7 (i) [State Board of Investment Supplemental Plan], regardless of the form in which they are held, <u>not exceed</u> 85% of the market value of the market value of the association's special fund?</li> </ul>	
	Note: Investment Transition	
	If an investment of the association was authorized under Minn. Stat. § 356A.06 immediately before May 11, 2012, but is not authorized by the statutes as amended by 2012 Minn. Laws, ch. 286, art. 10, § 12, it must be liquidated before June 30, 2013.	
	M. Were each of the association's investments permitted in sections A through L above?	
	If not permitted, was it authorized immediately before May 11, 2012?	

	Part IV. Investments - All Reliefs			
§§ 69.77, subd. 9; 69.775; & 11A.17	A. If the relief association used the State Board of Investment (SBI) to manage all or part of its investments, did the governing board of the association certify funds turned over to the SBI?			
§ 356.64	B. If the relief association invested in ownership interests or loans secured by mortgages or deeds of trust, were they on non-farm real estate located in Minnesota?			
§ 356A.06, subd. 8b	C. Before the relief association completed an investment transaction with or in accord with the advice of a broker:			

Minn. Stat. Section	RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
	<ol> <li>did the relief association provide annually to the broker a written statement of investment restrictions applicable to the relief association under state law or the relief association's investment policy;</li> </ol>			
	2. did the broker acknowledge in writing annually the receipt of the statement of investment restrictions and agree to handle the relief association's investments and assets in accordance with the provided investment restrictions; and			
	3. did the broker provide this written acknowledgment to the chief administrative officer of the relief association?			
	4. If any portion of the plan's assets are held by a security broker or its agent, did the security broker or its agent acknowledge in writing annually that sufficient insurance has been obtained from the Securities Investor Protection Corporation, supplemented by additional insurance, if necessary, to cover the full amount of covered pension plan assets held by the security broker or its agent; <u>and</u>			
	did the plan and brokers use forms prepared by the state auditor to meet the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 8b?			

	the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 356A.06, subd. 8b?		
§ 356A.06, subds. 6 & 7	D. Investment in annuities is not permitted by the limited list or the expanded list.		
	Did the relief association <u>not</u> invest in annuities?		

	Part V. Investment Reporting	
§ 356.219	- Minn. Stat. § 356.219 requires local relief associations that are not "fully invested" with the Minnesota State Board of Investment (SBI) to file certain information about their investments with the Office of the State Auditor (OSA).	
	- A local relief association is "fully invested" with the SBI if all of the association's assets "beyond sufficient cash equivalent investments to cover six months expected expenses" are invested through the SBI. Such associations may file a waiver form with the OSA.	
	- A relief association not fully invested with the SBI, with a market value of \$25,000,000 or more at the beginning of the calendar year, must report specified information, broken down into accounts, portfolios, or asset classes, on the appropriate form prescribed by the OSA. The specific requirements are based on criteria set forth in Minn. Stat. § 356.219.	
	- A relief association not fully invested with the SBI, which has a total market value that does not equal or exceed \$ 25,000,000, must report information about its total portfolio, broken down on a quarterly basis. It must also collect and retain additional information.	
	- All relief associations must submit investment policy statements and subsequent revisions to the OSA.	
§ 356.219	A. For all relief associations:	
	1. Has the relief association submitted the investment policy statement and subsequent revisions?	
	B. For a relief association that had a total market value of \$25,000,000 or more at the beginning of the calendar year:	

Minn. Stat.	RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
Section		100	110	10101010000

1. Has the relief association filed all of the required investment information on the appropriate form prescribed by the OSA; or
2. Is the association excluded from the reporting requirement because all of its assets "beyond sufficient cash equivalent investments to cover six months expected expenses" are invested in the SBI, and has the relief association filed Form ID/Waiver SBI with the OSA?
C. For a relief association that does not have a total market value of \$25,000,000 or more:
1. Has the relief association filed all of the required investment information with the OSA on the appropriate form prescribed by the OSA; or
2. Is the association excluded from the reporting requirement because all of its assets "beyond sufficient cash equivalent investments to cover six months expected expenses" are invested in the SBI, and has the relief association filed Form ID Waiver with the OSA?
3. Has the relief association retained: (1) information specifying the date and amount of each injection and withdrawal to each investment account and investment portfolio, and (2) the market value of each investment account and investment portfolio at the beginning of each calendar year and for each quarter?

		Part VI. Economic Interest Statement	 	
§ 356A.06, subd. 4	A.	For volunteer firefighter relief associations, nonprofit firefighting corporations, and paid firefighter and police relief associations with assets under \$8,000,000:		
		1. Did each member of the governing board and chief administrative officer file with the relief association or firefighting corporation a statement of economic interest indicating:		
		a. the person's principal occupation and principal place of business;		
		b. whether or not the person has an ownership of or interest of ten percent or greater in an investment security brokerage business, a real estate sales business, an insurance agency, a bank, a savings and loan, or another financial institution; and		
		c. any relationship or financial arrangement that can reasonably be expected to give rise to a conflict of interest?		
	В.	For the Bloomington Firefighters Relief Association and paid firefighter and police relief associations with assets of \$8,000,000 or more:		
		1. Did each member of the governing board and chief administrative officer file with the relief association a statement of economic interest containing the information required in Minn. Stat. § 10A.09, subd. 5, and any other information requested by the fiduciary or governing board to disclose reasonably foreseeable potential and actual conflicts of interest?		
	C.	For all relief associations and firefighting corporations mentioned in A or B above:		

Minn. Stat. Section	RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
	1. Did the chief administrative officer, by January 15, annually transmit a certified listing of all individuals who have filed statements of economic interest with the relief association or firefighting corporation during the preceding 12 months and the address of the office of the pension plan to the Campaign Finance and Public Disclosure Board?			

	Part VII. Other Requirements for Relief Associations	
	i ur vin our nequienents for rener ressociations	
§ 69.77, subd. 10	A. For the Bloomington Firefighter's Relief Association:	
	1. Did the association prepare an actuarial valuation showing the condition of the special fund as of December 31 every year?	
	2. Was the actuarial valuation prepared pursuant to the guidelines of Minn. Stat. §§ 356.215, 356.216, and any applicable standards established by the Legislative Commission on Pensions and Retirement?	
	<ol> <li>Was a copy of the actuarial valuation sent on or before July 1 of the following year to:</li> </ol>	
	a. the Executive Director of the Legislative Commission on Pensions and Retirement;	
	b. the Director of the Legislative Reference Library;	
	c. the municipal governing body; and	
	d. the State Auditor?	
§ 69.773, subd. 2 <u>See</u> GASB 25, para. 35	B. If the relief association was a volunteer firefighter relief association paying or allowing monthly service pensions:	
	1. Did the association prepare an actuarial valuation showing the condition of the special fund at least every two years as required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)?	
	<ol> <li>Was the valuation prepared pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 69.773, subd. 2, and the guidelines of Minn. Stat. §§ 356.215, subd. 8, 356.216, and any applicable standards established by the Legislative Commission on Pensions and Retirement?</li> </ol>	
	3. Was a copy of the actuarial valuation sent to:	
	a. the municipal governing body; and	
	b. the State Auditor?	
§ 69.773, subd. 1	C. If the relief association previously provided a monthly benefit service pension, but discontinued that practice and either replaced the monthly benefit amount with a lump sum benefit amount consistent with Minn. Stat. § 424A.02, subd. 3, or purchased an annuity in the same amount as the monthly benefit from an insurance company licensed to do business in Minnesota, were the actuarial, financial, and minimum obligation requirements of Minn. Stat. § 69.772 complied with?	

Minn. Stat. Section	RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
beetion		105	110	Reference
§ 69.051, subd. 2	D. Did the relief association obtain from its treasurer a faithful performance surety bond as follows:			
	1. for salaried relief associations, in a reasonable amount acceptable to the municipality; or			
	2. for volunteer fire relief associations, in an amount equal to at least ten percent of the relief association's assets (except that it need not exceed \$500,000)?			
	E. Was the municipal contribution to the special fund determined as follows:			
	<ol> <li>for police relief associations and paid firefighter relief associations, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 69.77, subd. 4;</li> </ol>			
	2. for volunteer firefighter relief associations paying lump sum service pensions, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 69.772, subd. 3; or			
	3. for volunteer firefighter relief associations paying monthly service pensions, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 69.773, subd. 5?			
	F. Did the association certify the financial requirements of the special fund and the minimum obligation of the municipality:			
§ 69.77, subd. 5	1. between August 1 and September 1 in the case of police and paid firefighter relief associations; and			
§§ 69.772, subd. 4, & 69.773, subd. 5	2. prior to August 1 in the case of volunteer firefighter associations?			
<pre>\$\$ 69.77, subd. 6; 69.771, subd. 2; 69.772, subd. 4; &amp; 69.773, subd. 5</pre>	G. Did the municipality pay the minimum obligation as certified by the relief association?			
\$\$ 69.77, subd. 7; 69.772, subd. 4; & 69.773, subd. 5	H. If the municipality did not pay the minimum obligation as certified, did the officers of the relief association certify the unpaid amount to the county auditor?			

Part VIII. Requirements for Salaried Relief Associations (Police and Firefighters)					
§ 423A.22, subd. 2		the municipality designate an official to receive and deposit all money eived for the special fund?			
§ 423A.22, subd. 2	B. Did	the designated official countersign all disbursements of \$5,000 or more?			
		ne association hired an institution to administer its financial affairs, did official designated by the municipality:			
	1.	approve the trustee agreement; and			

	2. countersign authorizations of all disbursements for \$5,000 or more?
§ 423A.22, subd. 1	D. Did the board report to the municipality at least once in the preceding year, regarding:
	1. the required municipal support under Minn. Stat. § 69.77;
	2. the financial condition of the relief association under Minn. Stat. § 69.051;
	3. the association's investment objectives and performance;
	4. surety bond amounts for the secretary and treasurer pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 69.051, subd. 4; and
	5. the annual administrative budget?
	E. Did the board of trustees include at least two members appointed by the municipality?
§ 423A.21, subd. 2	1. Did the municipal representatives have full rights and privileges of board membership, including full voting powers?
	2. Was at least one municipal representative on any investment subcommittee formed by the board?       Image: Committee formed by the board formed

	Part IX. Requirements of Volunteer Relief Associations			
§ 424A.02, subd. 3	A. Defined Benefit Plans	S		
	secretary or some association calcu the "average amo	efit relief associations, on or before August 1, did the le other officer of the volunteer firefighters' relief ulate and certify to the municipality's governing body ount of available financing per active covered e most recent three-year period," pursuant to Minn. subd. 3?		
	paid by the relief	efit relief associations, did the service pension amounts f association not exceed the maximum service pension rsuant to Minn. Stat. § 424A.02, subd. 3?		
§ 424A.016, subd. 4	B. Defined Contribution			
	amounts to be cre	tribution relief associations, was an equal share of the redited under Minn. Stat. § 424A.016, subd. 4 credited account of each firefighter?		
	based on that por member in the in-	tribution relief associations, were service pensions paid rtion of the assets of the special fund to the credit of the ndividual account that is nonforfeitable under Minn. 6, subd. 3 and the bylaws, based on the retiring of service?		
§ 424A.04	C. If the relief association department, did it have	on was directly associated with a municipal fire ye a board of trustees consisting of nine members?		
	1.         Does the board constraints           a.         six members and	rs elected from the membership of the relief association;		
	(1) one ele	bers, consisting of: lected municipal official designated by the municipal ning board,		
		lected or appointed municipal official designated by the cipal board, and		

		(2) $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1, 1)$ $(1,$	
	D	(3) the chief of the municipal fire department?	 
	D.	If the relief association is a subsidiary of an independent non-profit	
		firefighting corporation, did it have a nine-member board of trustees, with six	
		members elected by the association, two elected or appointed officials	
		designated by the municipality's governing board that year, and the fire chief	
	_	serving with the independent non-profit firefighting corporation?	
		1. If two or more municipalities contracted with the firefighting	
		corporation, was there one municipal trustee from each of the two	
		largest municipalities?	
	E.	If the relief association is directly associated with a fire department operated	
		as or by a joint powers entity, were the municipal trustees the fire chief of the	
		fire department and two trustees designated by the joint powers board that	
		year?	
	F.	If the relief association is directly associated with a fire department service	
		area township, were the municipal trustees the fire chief of the fire	
		department and two trustees designated by the township board?	
	G.	If a member of the board of trustees was a retired member of the relief, did	
	0.	the bylaws of the association specifically allow such membership?	
		[Note: Allowed only for associations that offer a monthly service pension.]	
	H.	If the relief association lacks municipal members provided for in Minn. Stat.	
	п.	§ 424A.04, subd. 1(a), (b), or (c), because the fire department is not located	
		in or associated with an organized municipality, joint powers entity, or	
		township, were the municipal members the fire chief of the fire department	
		and two board members appointed from the fire department service area by	
	-	the board of commissioners of the applicable county?	
§ 424A.015,	I.	If a relief association paid a service pension or disability benefit to a former	
subd. 1		member who has not separated from active service with the fire department	
		to which the relief association is directly associated:	
		1. Was the person employed subsequent to retirement by the municipality	
		or firefighting corporation to perform duties within the fire department	
		or corporation on a full-time basis?	
		2. Had the governing body of the municipality or of the corporation filed	
		its determination with the board of trustees of the relief association that	
		the person's experience with and service to the fire department in that	
		person's full-time capacity would be difficult to replace?	
		3. Were the bylaws of the relief association amended to provide for the	
		payment of a service pension or disability benefit for such full-time	
		employees?	
§ 424A.04,	J.	Conditions on Relief Association Consultants	
subd. 3			
5404. 5		For the purposes of this question, a consultant is any person employed under	
		contract to provide legal or financial advice and who is or represents to the	
		volunteer firefighter relief association that the person is an actuary, a	
		certified public accountant, an attorney, an investment advisor or manager,	
		an investment counselor, an investment advisor or manager selection	
		consultant, a pension benefit design advisor or consultant, or any other	
		financial consultant.	
		If the relief association employed or contracted with a consultant to provide	
		legal or financial advice, did the secretary of the relief association obtain and	
		did the consultant provide to the secretary of the relief association a copy of	
		the consultant's certificate of insurance?	

	Part X. Appropriation of State Aid				
	(Police and Firefighters' Relief Associations)				
§ 69.031	<ul> <li>A. If all police officers are members of a relief association, or if a duly incorporated firefighters' relief association is organized and the municipality or nonprofit firefighting corporation is not covered by the voluntary statewide lump-sum volunteer firefighter retirement plan:</li> </ul>				
	<ol> <li>Did the municipal treasurer transmit the state aid from the Commissioner of Mgmt. and Budget to the relief association treasurer:         <ul> <li>a. within 30 days of receipt for police and paid firefighters' relief associations; or</li> </ul> </li> </ol>				
	b. for a fire relief association which had not filed a financial report with the municipality, at a later date upon the relief association's filing a financial report?				
	2. Did the relief association treasurer immediately deposit the warrant in the association's special fund?				
	B. If all police officers are members of the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF), was the total state aid applied toward the municipal contribution under Minn. Stat. §§ 353.65, subd. 3, and 353.665, subd. 8(b), if applicable?				
§§ 69.031, subd. 5(b)(3), & 423A.01, subd. 2(6)	C. If retirement coverage is provided by both a police relief association or firefighter relief association (other than one in a first class city with a population over 300,000) and PEPFF due to consolidation, did the municipality:				
	1. transmit the total state aid (aid) to the relief association treasurer for deposit in the special fund;				
	<ol> <li>use the aid to apply toward the municipality employer contribution to the PEPFF pursuant to Minn. Stat. §§ 353.65, subd. 3, and 353.665, subd. 8(b), if applicable; or</li> </ol>				
	3. allocate the aid proportionally to the relief association and PEPFF based on each organization's respective number of active full-time peace officers (as defined by Minn. Stat. § 69.011, subd. (1)(g)) or full-time salaried firefighters receiving retirement coverage from each?				

Part XI. Municipalities Without Fire Relief Associations				
§§ 69.031, subd. 5(a), & 424A.08	A. If the municipality (1) received fire state aid, (2) is not covered by the voluntary statewide lump-sum volunteer firefighter retirement plan under Minn. Stat., ch. 353G, and (3) had no firefighters' relief association, or the association has dissolved or has been removed as trustee of state aid:			
	1. were the funds placed in a special account in the municipal treasury?			
	2. were the funds only used for:			
	a. payment of fees, dues, and assessments to the Minnesota State Fire Department Association and to the State Volunteer Firefighters Benefit Association;			
	b. payment of the cost of purchasing and maintaining fire department equipment; or			

Minn. Stat.	RELIEF ASSOCIATIONS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
	c. payment of the cost of construction, acquisition, repair, or maintenance of buildings or other places housing the equipment of the fire department; or			
	d. If it has full-time firefighters covered by the public employees police and fire retirement plan, to pay the employer contribution requirement with respect to firefighters covered by the public employee police and fire retirement plan under Minn. Stat. § 353.65?			
424A.08 (c)	B. If the municipality has no volunteer firefighters' relief association directly associated with it and participates in the voluntary statewide lump-sum			

volunteer firefighter retirement plan under chapter 353G, did it transmit any fire state aid that it received to the voluntary statewide lump-sum volunteer

Were all assets of the relief association transferred to PERA?

Part XII. Police or Salaried Firefighters' Relief Association Consolidating into the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)

firefighter retirement fund?

Part XIII. Non-Profit Firefighting Corporation					
§ 424A.07	А.	If a non-profit firefighting corporation is being examined, did it establish a relief association pursuant to Minn. Stat., ch. 424A prior to receiving state aid and prior to paying service pensions or retirement benefits?			

§ 353A.07,

subd. 3

A.

#### Part XIV. Audit Conclusion

The auditor must state a conclusion--based on this questionnaire and any other audit procedures performed--whether the client has complied with the legal provisions reviewed relating to relief associations.

Conclusion:

## UNIFORM FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS (UFARS) FOR MINNESOTA SCHOOL DISTRICTS AND CHARTER SCHOOLS

#### LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

#### UNIFORM FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS (UFARS) FOR MINNESOTA SCHOOL DISTRICTS AND CHARTER SCHOOLS

#### Introduction

Minnesota law requires that the audits of all school districts, all governmental units formed by joint powers agreements entered into by school districts, and all service cooperatives and education districts must include a determination of compliance with uniform financial accounting and reporting standards (UFARS). Minn. Stat. §§ 6.65; 123B.77, subd. 3. This requirement applies to charter schools under Minn. Stat. § 124D.10, subd. 8 (j).

Minn. Stat. § 6.65 states (emphasis added):

The state auditor shall prescribe minimum procedures and the audit scope for auditing the books, records, accounts, and affairs of political subdivisions in Minnesota. The minimum scope for audits of all political subdivisions must include financial and legal compliance audits. <u>Audits of all school districts must include a determination of compliance with uniform financial accounting and reporting standards</u>. The state auditor shall promulgate an audit guide for legal compliance audits, in consultation with representatives of the state auditor, the attorney general, towns, cities, counties, school districts, and private sector public accountants.

Minn. Stat. § 123B.77, subd. 3, states (emphasis added):

By November 30 of the calendar year of the submission of the unaudited financial data, the district must provide to the commissioner audited financial data for the preceding fiscal year. The audit must be conducted in compliance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards, the federal Single Audit Act, and the Minnesota legal compliance guide issued by the Office of the State Auditor. An audited financial statement prepared in a form which will allow comparison with and correction of material differences in the unaudited financial data shall be submitted to the commissioner and the state auditor by December 31. The audited financial statement must also provide a statement of assurance pertaining to uniform financial accounting and reporting standards compliance and a copy of the management letter submitted to the district by the school district's auditor.

#### Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards (UFARS)

The uniform financial accounting and reporting standards to be used by school districts for automated state reporting purposes are described in the <u>UFARS Manual</u> and in School Business Bulletins issued by the Minnesota Department of Education. The <u>UFARS Manual</u> and School Business Bulletins provide an account code structure and guidance on application of accounting principles. At any point in time, parts of the <u>UFARS Manual</u> may have been superseded by legislative, program, and accounting principle changes. The School Business Bulletins serve as updates to the <u>UFARS Manual</u> for such changes. It is the auditor's responsibility to stay abreast of current developments.

#### UFARS Compliance

In order to determine compliance with UFARS, the auditor should consider the following items.

#### Account Coding

Conformance with UFARS includes the classification of revenues and expenditures into appropriate UFARS codes. UFARS revenue and expenditure codes consist of 17 digits organized into six dimensions. Chapter Ten of the <u>UFARS Manual</u> defines how the six dimensions may be combined into valid 17-digit codes for state reporting purposes.

- 1. Revenue and expenditure account codes that have been developed by school districts for their internal use must be linked (crosswalked) to the appropriate 17-digit UFARS codes. In some cases, the internal district code bears little resemblance to the UFARS code. The underlying UFARS codes, not the district codes, are used for automated reporting to the state.
- 2. Audit procedures should be developed to ensure that revenues and expenditures have been recorded in the proper UFARS codes.
  - A. Such procedures must include tests of controls as identified in and where required by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountant's (AICPA) Statement of Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 110,¹ *Performing Audit Procedures in Response to Assessed Risks and Evaluating the Audit Evidence Obtained.* The procedures developed should be in response to assessed risks identified pursuant to SAS No. 109:² *Understanding the Entity and Its Environment and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement.* Sampling may be used to determine the reasonablness of recorded UFARS amounts and classifications based on examination of source documentation.
    - B. Such audit procedures may include the following:
      - Verify appropriate UFARS coding as part of a test of transactions (individual revenue and expenditure transactions).
      - Test linkage (crosswalk) of internal use account codes to the appropriate 17-digit UFARS codes.
      - Obtain "UFARS Chapter 10 Edit Report" and review for exceptions.
      - Verify appropriate UFARS coding as part of testing of revenue and expenditure account totals for the year.

Other tests that are considered necessary.

Auditors should use their judgment in determining the nature, timing, and extent of testing necessary to provide a statement of assurance pertaining to UFARS compliance.

¹ As clarified and recodified by SAS No. 122, Statements on Auditing Standards; Clarification and Recodification.  2  *Id.* 

¹*a*. 11/2012

#### Audit Reporting

The Auditor's Report on Compliance should indicate that the audit was conducted to determine conformance with UFARS standards. Chapter Six of this audit guide includes suggested wording for Auditor's Reports on Compliance.

# **CHARTER SCHOOLS**

#### LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE CHARTER SCHOOLS

#### **Introduction**

Charter schools must comply with statutes specified in Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 124D.10, subd. 8(j). In addition, charter school audits must be conducted in compliance with Minn. Stat. § 6.65, which requires legal compliance audits and the promulgation of this Legal Compliance Audit Guide. *Id*.

Charter School audits "must comply with the requirements of sections 123B.75 to 123B.83, except to the extent deviations are necessary because of the program at the school. Deviations must be approved by the commissioner and authorizer." *See* Minn. Stat. § 124D.10, subd. 8(j).

Please note that charter schools must also comply with the Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards (UFARS) for Minnesota schools. *See* section 8.

	Part I. Charter School Conflicts of Interest			
§ 124D.10, subd. 4a (a)	<ul> <li>"An individual is prohibited from serving as a member of the charter school board of directors if the individual, an immediate family member, or the individual's partner is an owner, employee or agent of, or a contractor with a for-profit or nonprofit entity with whom the charter school contracts, directly or indirectly, for professional services, goods, or facilities."</li> </ul>			
§ 124D.10, subd. 4a (b)	<ul> <li>"No member of the board of directors, employee, officer, or agent of a charter school shall participate in selecting, awarding, or administering a contract if a conflict of interest exists. A conflict exists when: <ul> <li>(1) the board member, employee, officer, or agent;</li> <li>(2) the immediate family of the board member, employee, officer, or agent;</li> <li>(3) the partner of the board member, employee, officer, or agent; or</li> <li>(4) an organization that employs, or is about to employ any individual in clauses (1) to (3),</li> <li>has a financial or other interest in the entity with which the charter school is contracting."</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
§ 124D.10, subd. 4a (c) § 124D.10,	<ul> <li>"Any employee, agent, or board member of the authorizer who participates in the initial review, approval, ongoing oversight, evaluation, or the charter renewal or nonrenewal process or decision is ineligible to serve on the board of directors of a school chartered by that authorizer."</li> <li>The conflict of interest provisions under Minn. Stat. § 124D.10, subd. 4a,</li> </ul>			
subd. 4a (e)	do not apply to compensation paid to a teacher employed by the charter school who also serves as a member of the board of directors.			
§ 124D.10, subd. 4a (f)	- The conflict of interest provisions under Minn. Stat. § 124D.10, subd. 4a, do not apply to a teacher who provides services to a charter school through a cooperative formed under Minn. Stat. ch. 308A when the teacher also serves on the charter school board of directors.			
	A. Has the charter school complied with the Minn. Stat. § 124D.10, subd. 4a conflict of interest prohibitions quoted above?			

	Part II. Purchase of Merchandise				
§§ 124D.10, subd. 8(j), & 15.054	A. Officers and employees of a charter school are prohibited from selling or buying property or materials owned by the charter school. <u>Employees</u> may make purchases from the charter school if the following criteria are met.				
	For all purchases:				
	1. Was the property or materials purchased by the employee not needed for charter school purposes?				
	2. Was the purchase made through sealed bids or public auction?				
	3. Was the employee <u>not</u> directly involved with the sealed bid or auction process?				
	4. Was the applicable "notice" law followed, and did the same require at least one week of published notice?				

### CHARTER SCHOOLS

		Workpaper
Yes	No	Reference

	Part III. Designation of Depository				
§ 124D.10, subd. 8(j)	Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 124D.10, subd. 8(j), charter schools are subject to and must comply with §§ 118A.01, 118A.02, 118A.03, 118A.04, 118A.05, and 118A.06.				
§ 118A.01, subd. 4	"Public funds" for the purpose of this section means all general, special, permanent, trust, or other funds, regardless of source or purpose, held or administered by a charter school, unless otherwise restricted. Minn. Stat. § 118A.01, subd. 4.				
§ 118A.02, subd. 1	A. In the case of a charter school:				
	1. Has each depository of public funds been designated by the charter school's governing body, or by its treasurer or chief financial officer, if the charter school has authorized them to make such a designation?				
§ 118A.01, subd. 3	2. Is each depository one of the following:				
	a. a savings association;				
	b. a commercial bank;				
	c. a trust company;				
	d. a credit union; or				
	e. an industrial loan and thrift company?				

Part IV. Insuring or Securing Deposits					
§ 118A.03, subds. 1 & 3	А.	If a charter school desires to deposit an amount in excess of deposit insurance, it must obtain a bond or collateral which, when computed at its market value, shall be at least ten percent more than the amount of the excess deposit.			
	В.	Review the general principles of FDIC coverage in section 1 and complete the spreadsheet in this section to determine the amount of the charter school's funds that are not insured and thus need to be either bonded or collateralized. Deposits held by credit unions are covered by separate deposit insurance rules promulgated by the National Credit Union Administration (NCUA).			
	C.	Was collateral coverage sufficient? (Answer after completing the spreadsheet on page 9-13.)			

	Part V. The Bond and Collateral	
	A. If a bond was furnished by the depository to the charter school, answer the following question:	
§ 118A.03, subd. 1	1. Was the bond executed by a corporate surety company authorized to do business in the state?	
	B. If the depository assigned collateral to the charter school, answer the following questions:	
§ 118A.03, subd. 2	1. Was the collateral one of the following:	
	a. U.S. government treasury bills, notes, or bonds;	
	b. issues of a U.S. government agency or instruments that are quoted by a recognized industry quotation service available to the government entity;	
	c. a general obligation of a state or local government, with taxing powers, rated "A" or better;	
	d. a revenue obligation of a state or local government, with taxing powers, rated "AA" or better;	
	e. unrated general obligation securities of a local government with taxing powers pledged as collateral against funds deposited by that same local government entity;	
	f. an irrevocable standby letter of credit issued by a Federal Home Loan Bank accompanied by written evidence that the Federal Home Loan Bank's public debt is rated "AA" or better by Moody's or Standard and Poor's; or	
	g. time deposits insured by a federal agency?	
§ 118A.03, subd. 7	2. Was the collateral placed for safekeeping:	
	a. in a restricted account at the Federal Reserve Bank; or	
	b. in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution not owned or controlled by the depository?	
§ 118A.03, subd. 7	3. Did the charter school approve of the selection of the safekeeping entity?	
§ 118A.03, subd. 4	4. Was the collateral assignment in writing?	
	5. Did the assignment provide that, upon default, the depository shall release the collateral pledged to the charter school on demand?	

Minn. Stat.	CHARTER SCHOOLS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
§ 118A.03, subd. 3	C. Collateral pledged must equal at least ten percent more than the uninsured and unbonded amount on deposit. The depository may, at its discretion, furnish both a bond and collateral aggregating the required amount.			
	1. If a bond was used or standby letters of credit issued by Federal Home Loan Banks were pledged, was the amount of excess deposit less than or equal to the amount of the bond or standby letters of credit?			
	2. If other collateral was pledged, was the amount of collateral at least ten percent more than the uninsured amount on deposit?			
[12 U.S.C. § 1823(e)]	D. Assignment [Federal Statutory Requirements]			
	1. Was the written assignment approved by the depository's board of directors or loan committee?			
	2. Was the assignment an official record of the depository?			

	Part VI. Public Investments			
§ 118A.05, subd. 2	A. Were all repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements <u>only</u> entered into with:			
	1. a financial institution qualified as a depository of public funds;			
	2. any other financial institution which is a member of the Federal Reserve System <u>and</u> whose combined capital and surplus equals or exceeds \$10,000,000;			
	3. a primary reporting dealer in United States government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; or			
	4. a securities broker-dealer licensed pursuant to chapter 80A, or an affiliate of it, regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and maintaining a combined capital and surplus of \$40,000,000 or more, exclusive of subordinated debt?			
§ 118A.06	B. Are all investments held in safekeeping? If so:			
	1. Is the government entity's ownership of all securities in which the fund is invested evidenced by written acknowledgments identifying the securities by:			
	a. the names of the issuers?			
	b. maturity dates?			
	c. interest rates?			
	d. CUSIP numbers or other distinguishing marks?			

### CHARTER SCHOOLS

Section		105	NU	Keleleli
	C. Were the securities sold or pledged under the repurchase agreement or reverse repurchase agreement permissible direct investments under Minn. Stat. § 118A.04 (see L and M below)?			
§ 118A.05, subd. 2	D. Were all reverse repurchase agreements only entered into:			
	1. for a period of 90 days or less; and	+		
	2. only to meet short-term cash needs and not to generate cash for investments?			
§ 118A.05, subd. 3	E. Were all securities lending agreements (including custody agreements) entered into only with:			
	1. a financial institution qualified as a depository; or			
	2. a financial institution which is a member of the Federal Reserve System and whose combined capital and surplus equals or exceeds \$10,000,000, having an office in Minnesota?			
	F. Did the custodian or entity operating the securities lending program only enter into securities lending transactions with those entities identified in Part VI.A. (above)?			
§ 118A.05, subd. 5	G. Were all guaranteed investment contracts or agreements only entered into with an issuer or guarantor:			
	1. that was a U.S. commercial bank, a domestic branch of a foreign bank, a U.S. insurance company, its Canadian subsidiary, or the domestic affiliates of any of the foregoing; and			
	2. whose credit quality for long-term and short-term unsecured debt was rated in one of the highest two categories by a nationally recognized rating agency?			
	H. Did all guaranteed investment contracts give the charter school withdrawal rights in the event the issuer's or guarantor's credit quality was downgraded below "A"?			
§ 118A.05, subd. 4	I. Did the charter school only invest in shares of a Minnesota joint powers investment trust whose investments were restricted to securities described in Minn. Stat. §§ 118A.04 and 118A.05?			
	J. Mutual Funds	+		
	Did the charter school only invest in shares of an investment company that met the criteria in either 1 or 2 below:			
	1. a. registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940;			
	b. whose shares were registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933;			
	c. whose fund received the highest credit rating;	1		

Minn. Stat. Section	CHARTER SCHOOLS	Yes	No	Workpape Reference
Beetion		103	110	Reference
	d. that was rated in one of the two highest risk rating categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization; <u>and</u>			
	e. that only invests in financial instruments with a final maturity no longer than 13 months?			
	2. a. registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940;			
	b. which holds itself out as a money market fund meeting the conditions of SEC Rule 2a-7; and			
	c. is rated in one of the two highest rating categories for money market funds by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization?			
	K. Did the charter school only invest in units of a short-term investment fund:			
	1. established and administered pursuant to regulation 9 of the Comptroller of the Currency; and			
	2. in which investments are restricted to securities described in Minn. Stat. §§ 118A.0405?			
§ 118A.04	L. Were all other funds invested in instruments which met at least one of the following criteria:			
	<ol> <li>In governmental bonds, notes, bills, mortgages, and other securities, which were direct obligations or are guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress, excluding mortgage-backed securities defined as "high risk" (see Section M - Mortgage-Backed Securities);</li> </ol>			
	<ul> <li>In a general obligation of a state or local government with taxing powers which was rated "A" or better by a national bond rating service;</li> </ul>			
	<ol> <li>In a revenue obligation of a state or local government with taxing powers which was rated "AA" or better by a national bond rating service;</li> </ol>			
	<ul> <li>4. In a general obligation of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency which was a moral obligation of the State of Minnesota and is rated "A" or better by a national bond rating service;</li> </ul>			

	"A" or better by a national bond rating service;		
§ 118A.04, subd. 4	<ol> <li>In commercial paper issued by a United States corporation or its Canadian subsidiary and that:</li> </ol>		
	a. was rated in the highest quality category by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, <u>and</u>		
	b. matures in 270 days or less;		

Minn. Stat. Section

§ 118A.04, subd. 5       6. In time deposits fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation;         7. In bankers' acceptances issued by United States banks; or         § 118A.04, subd. 7       8. In its own temporary obligations issued under Minn. Stat. §§ 429.091, subd. 7 (special assessments); 469.178, subd. 5 (tax increment bonds); or 475.61, subd. 6?         § 118A.04, subd. 8       Note: A debt service fund can purchase any issue payable from the fund.         § 118A.04, subd. 2       M. Mortgage-Backed Securities         Charter schools may only purchase mortgage-backed securities that are direct obligations or guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress.         § 118A.04, subds. 2 & 6       Mortgage-backed securities purchased shall not be "high risk." Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6, states "high risk mortgage-backed securities" are:         1.       interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities; and         2.       any mortgage derivative security that:         a.       has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
§ 118A.04, subd. 7       8. In its own temporary obligations issued under Minn. Stat. §§ 429.091, subd. 7 (special assessments); 469.178, subd. 5 (tax increment bonds); or 475.61, subd. 6?         § 118A.04, subd. 8       Note: A debt service fund can purchase any issue payable from the fund.         § 118A.04, subd. 2       M. Mortgage-Backed Securities         Charter schools may only purchase mortgage-backed securities that are direct obligations or guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress.         § 118A.04, subds. 2 & 6       Mortgage-backed securities purchased shall not be "high risk." Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6, states "high risk mortgage-backed securities" are:         1. interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities; and         2. any mortgage derivative security that:         a. has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
subd. 7§§ 429.091, subd. 7 (special assessments); 469.178, subd. 5 (tax increment bonds); or 475.61, subd. 6?§ 118A.04, subd. 8Note: A debt service fund can purchase any issue payable from the fund.§ 118A.04, subd. 2M. Mortgage-Backed SecuritiesCharter schools may only purchase mortgage-backed securities that are direct obligations or guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress.§ 118A.04, subds. 2 & 6Mortgage-backed securities purchased shall not be "high risk." Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6, states "high risk mortgage-backed securities" are:1.interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities; and2.any mortgage derivative security that: a.a.has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
subd. 8M.§ 118A.04, subd. 2M.Mortgage-Backed SecuritiesCharter schools may only purchase mortgage-backed securities that are direct obligations or guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress.§ 118A.04, subds. 2 & 6Mortgage-backed securities purchased shall not be "high risk." Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6, states "high risk mortgage-backed securities" are:1.interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities; and2.any mortgage derivative security that: a.a.has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
subd. 2Charter schools may only purchase mortgage-backed securities that are direct obligations or guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress.§ 118A.04, subds. 2 & 6Mortgage-backed securities purchased shall not be "high risk." Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6, states "high risk mortgage-backed securities" are:1.interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities; and2.any mortgage derivative security that: a.a.has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
direct obligations or guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress.         § 118A.04, subd.       Mortgage-backed securities purchased shall not be "high risk." Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6, states "high risk mortgage-backed securities" are:         1.       interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities; and         2.       any mortgage derivative security that:         a.       has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
subds. 2 & 6       Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6, states "high risk mortgage-backed securities" are:         1.       interest-only or principal-only mortgage-backed securities; and         2.       any mortgage derivative security that:         a.       has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
2. any mortgage derivative security that:       a. has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
a. has an expected average life greater than ten years; or	
b. has an expected average life that:	
(1) will extend by more than four years as the result of an immediate and sustained parallel shift in the yield curve of plus 300 basis points, or	
<ul> <li>(2) will shorten by more than six years as the result of an immediate and sustained parallel shift in the yield curve of minus 300 basis points; or</li> </ul>	
c. will have an estimated change in price of more than 17 percent as the result of an immediate and sustained parallel shift in the yield curve of plus or minus 300 basis points.	
3. Were all mortgage-backed securities purchased by the government entity after August 1, 1993, not "high risk?"	

	Part VII. Broker Acknowledgment Certification		
§ 118A.04, subd. 9	A. Annually, prior to completing an initial investment transaction with each broker, did the charter school provide to that broker a written statement of investment restrictions?		

Minn. Stat.	CHARTER SCHOOLS			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
	B. Did the broker acknowledge receipt of the investment restrictions and agree to handle the charter school's account in accordance with the			
	restrictions?			
	C. Did the charter school retain documentation of compliance with A and B above?			

	Part VIII. Claims and Disbursements - General Provisions	
§ 124D.10, subd. 8(j)	- Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 124D.10, subd. 8(j), charter schools are subject to and must comply with Minn. Stat. §§ 471.38, 471.391, 471.392, and 471.425.	
§ 471.38, subd. 1	A. Has every person or the person's agent claiming payment put such claim in writing (which includes an electronic transaction record) in items?	
§ 471.38, subd. 1	B. Has each declaration for payment (described below) been signed to the effect that such account, claim, or demand is just and correct and that no part of it has been paid?	
§ 471.38, subd. 2	Note: The provisions of this section do not apply to any claim or demand for an annual salary or fees of jurors or witnesses, fixed by law, nor to the salary or wages of any employee whose salary or wages have been fixed on an hourly, daily, weekly, or monthly basis, by the governing board of the municipality, and which is now authorized by law to be paid on a payroll basis.	
§ 471.391, subd. 1	Declaration Form - The declaration is sufficient if in the following form: "I declare under the penalties of law that this account, claim or demand is just and correct and that no part of it has been paid.	
	(Signature of Claimant)	
§ 471.391, subd. 2	The check or order-check by which the claim is paid may have printed on its reverse side, above the space for endorsement thereof, the following statement: "The undersigned payee, in endorsing this check (or order-check) declares that the same is received in payment of a just and correct claim against the [charter school], and that no part of it has heretofore been paid." When endorsed by the payee named in the check or order-check, such statement shall operate and shall be deemed sufficient as the required declaration of the claim.	
§ 471.392	C. Any person who willfully and falsely makes the declaration provided for is guilty of a felony.	
§ 471.425, subd. 2	D. Prompt Payment of Local Government Bills	
	- Standard payment period is:	
	- 35 days from receipt for governing boards that meet at least once a month;	

Minn. Stat.	CHARTER SCHOOLS			Workpape
Section		Yes	No	Reference
	- 45 days from receipt of goods or services or invoice, whichever is later, for governing boards that do not meet at least once per month; and			
	- 45 days from receipt for joint powers entities.			
§ 471.425, subd. 2	1. Were all bills paid within the time period set by the terms of the contract or within the standard payment period?			
§ 471.425, subd. 4	The charter school must pay interest on bills not paid in a timely manner. The interest rate is 1 ¹ / ₂ percent per month or part of a month. The minimum monthly interest on a bill of \$100 or more is \$10.			
§ 471.425, subd. 4	2. For bills paid after the time period set by the contract or the standard payment period, did the charter school calculate and pay interest as required by law?			
§ 471.425, subd. 4a	3. Did each contract between the charter school and a prime contractor require the prime contractor to pay subcontractors within ten days of receipt of payment from the charter school or pay interest at the rate of 1½ percent per month or any part of a month?			
	Note: The interest penalties in these questions do not apply to good faith disputes.			

§§ 124D.10, subd. 8(j), & 471.38, subds. 3 & 3a	Part IX. Claims and Disbursements - Electronic Funds Transfer
	A. Charter schools may make electronic funds transfers under certain conditions.
	1. A charter school may make electronic funds transfers for:
	a. a claim for payment from an imprest payroll bank account or investment of excess money;
	b. payment of tax or aid anticipation certificates;
	c. payment of contributions to a pension or retirement fund;
	d. vendor payments; and
	e. payment of bond principal, bond interest, and a fiscal agent service charge from the debt redemption fund.
	B. Did the charter school use electronic funds transfers only for the above enumerated transactions?
	C. Did the charter school enact a plan containing the following policy controls requiring:

Minn. Stat.	CHARTER SCHOOLS			Workpape
Section		Yes	No	Reference
1		1		
	<ol> <li>annual delegation of authority to make electronic funds transfers to a designated business administrator?</li> </ol>			
	2. the disbursing bank to keep a certified copy of delegation of authority?			
	3. identification of the initiator of each electronic transfer?			
	4. the initiator to document the request and obtain approval for each transfer from the designated business administrator, prior to the transaction?			
	5. written confirmation of each transaction within one business day?			
	6. a list of transactions to be submitted to the charter school's board at the next regular meeting after the transaction?			

	Part X. Related Party Lease Costs					
§ 124D.10, subd. 23a	For purposes of this Part:					
	- A "related party" is an affiliate or immediate relative of the other party in question, an affiliate of an immediate relative, or an immediate relative of an affiliate.					
	- "Affiliate" is a person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with another person.					
	- "immediate family" means an individual whose relationship by blood, marriage, adoption, or partnering is no more remote than first cousin.					
	- "Person" means an individual or entity of any kind.					
	- "Control" means the ability to affect the management, operations, or policy actions or decisions of a person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise.					
§ 124D.10, subd. 23a	A. If the charter school entered into a lease of real property with a related party on or after July 1, 2001:					
	1. was the lessor a nonprofit corporation under chapter 317A or a cooperative under chapter 308A; <u>and</u>					
	2. was the lease cost reasonable under Minn. Stat. § 124D.11, subd. 4(1)?					
	<ul> <li>B. If the charter school entered into as lessee a lease with a related party on or after July 1, 2001, does the lease contain the statement, "This lease is subject to Minnesota Statutes, section 124D.10, subdivision 23a?"</li> </ul>					

#### Part XII. Audit Conclusion

The auditor must state a conclusion--based on this questionnaire and any other audit procedures performed--whether the client has complied with the legal provisions reviewed relating to charter schools.

Conclusion:

#### SPREADSHEET

			а	b	с	d	(a+b) - (c+d) = e	e x 1.1 = f	g	g - f
Name of Depository	*	*	Funds in Savings, CDs, and NOW Accounts	Funds in Non-interest- Bearing Checking Accounts	Amount of Insurance Coverage	Amount of Bond	Deposits Requiring Collateral	Amount of Collateral Needed (110% of Deposits Requiring Collateral)	Market Value of Collateral Provided	Sufficient (Insufficient) Collateral Coverage
					[	I	I	I	I	I

# POLITICAL SUBDIVISION MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

# LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

# POLITICAL SUBDIVISION MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

# Introduction

This checklist, "Political Subdivision Miscellaneous Provisions" must be completed by auditors in the course of each audit of a political subdivision. It contains provisions that do not fit squarely into checklists 1 through 5.

Part I applies to counties only.

Part II applies to political subdivisions generally; the specific entities are indicated for each question.

Part III applies to city subdivision regulations only.

		Part I. Counties		 
§ 375.055	A.	County Board Salary and Per Diem Resolution		
		<ol> <li>Did the county board set the commissioners' annual salaries and per diem schedule in a resolution before January 1 of the year in which the salary becomes effective,* and did the resolution contain a statement of the salary as an annual dollar amount?</li> <li>(Except resolutions to <u>decrease</u> commissioners' salaries or per diems; such resolutions may take effect at any time.)</li> </ol>		
		2. Did members of the county board <u>not</u> receive a per diem for service on the board of auditors, the board of equalization, or the canvassing board?		
Op. Atty. Gen. 124a, April 28, 1994		3. Did members of the county board <u>not</u> receive more than one per diem for any given day?		
§ 375.45	В.	Change Funds		 
		Were all county change funds established by a county board appropriation from the proper fund and were the change funds used only for the purpose of making change?		
§ 375.162	C.	Imprest Cash Funds		 
		1. Imprest Funds for Payment of Claims		 
		a. Were imprest cash funds created by the county board and did the county board appoint a custodian of each imprest fund; and		
		b. was a claim itemizing all demands for which disbursements have been made from the fund presented to the county board at the next county board meeting after the month in which disbursements were made; and		
		c. did the county board act upon each claim as in the case of other claims and was a warrant issued to the custodian; and		
		d. did the custodian use the proceeds of the warrant to replenish the fund, and if the county board failed to approve the claim in full for any sufficient reason, was the custodian held personally responsible for the difference?		
§ 375.162		2. Imprest Funds for Travel		
		a. Were imprest cash funds authorized by the county board for the purpose of advancing money to officers or employees to pay their actual and necessary expenses in attending meetings outside the county or for other job-related travel; and		
		b. did the county board appoint a custodian to be responsible for its safekeeping and disbursement according to the law; and		
		c. was attendance at meetings and other travel outside the county authorized in advance by the county board; and		
L	l		L	 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Workpaper Reference

Yes

No

Minn. Stat.

Section

Minn. Stat.		MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS			Workpape
Section		d. did the officer submit an itemized claim for the actual and necessary	Yes	No	Referenc
		expenses incurred and paid related to the approved travel at a meeting of the county board in the month after approved travel outside the county; and			
		e. did the county board act upon it as in the case of other claims and was a warrant issued to the officer or employee for the amount allowed; and			
		f. did the officer or employee use the proceeds of the warrant to repay the amount advanced from the fund and if the amount approved by the county board was insufficient to repay the advance, was the officer or employee held responsible for the difference?			
§ 375.12	D.	Publication of County Board Minutes			
		Within 30 days of each meeting, did the county board have the official proceedings of its sessions or a summary published in a qualified newspaper of general circulation in the county?			
		Did the information published include all claims exceeding \$2,000 and a statement showing the total number of claims that did not exceed \$2,000 and their total dollar amount?			
§ 375.169	E.	Publication of Summary Budget Statement			
		Did the county annually, upon adoption of the county budget, publish a summary budget statement in a form prescribed by the state auditor in the county's official newspaper or, if there is none, a qualified newspaper of general circulation in the county?			
§ 375.17	F.	Financial Statements			
		1. Did the county board annually, not later than the first Tuesday after the first Monday in March, make a full and accurate statement of the receipts and expenditures of the preceding year under the form and style prescribed by and on file with the State Auditor?			
		2. Did the county annually publish the statement or a summary of the statement in a form prescribed by the State Auditor, for one issue in a duly qualified legal newspaper in the county?			
		3. If the county board elected to publish the full statement, did it publish either:			
		a. an itemized account of amounts paid out, to whom and for what purpose; <u>or</u>			
		b. if the published proceedings of the county board contained an itemized account of amounts paid out, to whom, and for what purpose, a schedule of major disbursements containing all disbursements aggregating \$5,000 or more to any person, amounts paid out, to whom, and for what purpose?			

Minn. Stat. Section	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	Yes	No	Workpape Reference
§ 385.29	G. County Treasurer Not to Lend Funds			
	Did the county treasurer <u>not</u> lend any money belonging to the county with or without interest and <u>not</u> use any county money for personal purposes?			
§ 386.78	H. County Recorder Security Deposits			
	1. Does the county recorder accept security deposits to guarantee payment of charges, and did the county recorder deposit such funds in a security fund with the county treasurer?			
	2. Did the county recorder extend credit to persons who made a deposit only up to the amount of the deposit?			
§ 276.19	I. Unclaimed Property Tax Overpayment			
	1. If an overpayment of property tax arose on a parcel due to receipt of a payment that exceeds the total amount of tax required to be paid on the property tax statement:			
	a. did the county promptly notify the payer of the overpayment by regular mail; and			
	b. did the notice identify the parcel, instruct the payer how to claim the overpayment, and advise that the overpayment is subject to forfeiture?			
	2. If a person entitled to a refund failed to claim the overpayment within three years after the date of the overpayment:			
	a. did the county auditor cause a "Notice of unclaimed property tax refunds" to be published in an English language newspaper of general circulation in the county; <u>and</u>			
	b. did the published notice include all items of \$25 or more overpaid on parcels; and			
	c. the names and last known addresses of persons that may be entitled to an unclaimed property tax refund; and			
	d. a statement that if proof of claims is not presented to the county auditor within 90 days, the overpayment will be considered abandoned and all claims to it will be forfeited; and			
	e. a statement that information concerning the amount of overpayment and affected property may be obtained from the county auditor at the address given in the notice?			
	3. If the person entitled to the refund failed to claim the overpayment within 90 days from the date of publication, did the county auditor distribute the refund to the affected taxing district either in proportion to the amount of their respective taxes included in the levy for the tax year overpaid, or in proportion to the current tax year levy?			

Minn. Stat. Section	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	Yes	No	Workpape Reference
§ 103E.651	J. Drainage System Accounts	103	110	Reference
	1. Did the Auditor keep a separate account for each drainage system; and			
	2. was the account credited with all money from the sale of bonds, and bond premiums and all money received from interest, liens, assessments, and other sources for the drainage system; and			
	3. was the account debited with every item of expense made for the drainage system?			
§ 103E.655	K. Drainage System Costs			
	1. If money was not available in the drainage system account on which a warrant was drawn:			
	a. did the county treasurer endorse the warrant "not paid for want of funds" and was interest at the rate of six percent per year paid; <u>or</u>			
	b. did the board, by unanimous resolution, transfer funds from another drainage system account or from the county general revenue fund to the drainage system account; <u>and</u>			
	c. was the money plus interest reimbursed from the proceeds of the drainage system that received the transfer, and was the interest computed for the time the money was actually needed at the same rate charged on drainage liens and assessments?			
§ 282.05, .08	L. Apportionment of Proceeds from Forfeited Land			
	Were the net proceeds from the sale or rental of forfeited land, or from the sale of products from the forfeited land apportioned by the county auditor to the taxing districts interested in the land in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 282.08?			
§ 276.111	M. Distributions and Final Year-End Settlement			
	<ol> <li>On or before January 5, did the county treasurer make full settlement of all tax receipts collected to December 31 of the prior year?</li> </ol>			
	2. On or before January 25, did the county treasurer pay to each of the taxing districts the balance of the tax amounts collected on behalf of each taxing district?			
	Part II. Political Subdivisions Generally			
§ 13D.01	A. Minnesota Open Meeting Law (Applies to governing body of a school district, unorganized territory, county, city, town, or other public body; and to any committee, subcommittee, board, department, or commission of the public body.)			
	1. Were all meetings of the governing board and of any committee, subcommittee, board, department, or commission of the governing board open to the public?			

Minn. Stat. Section		MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	Yes	No	Workpape Reference
		2. If a meeting was closed, did the governing board state on the record the specific grounds permitting the meeting to be closed and describe the subject to be discussed?			
§§ 13D.05, subd. 1(d), 13D.03		3. Were all closed meetings, except those closed as permitted by the attorney-client privilege, electronically recorded at the expense of the public body?			
§§ 345.38- .43		Unclaimed Property (Applies to any court, public corporation, public authority or public officer of this state, or a political subdivision.)			
		If the political subdivision's records show unclaimed or uncashed checks or other intangible property held for more than three years (or one year for unpaid compensation); was the property reported and paid or delivered to the state Commissioner of Commerce pursuant to Minn. Stat. §§ 345.41, .43?			
§ 465.03	C.	Acceptance of Gifts (Applies to any city, county, school district or town.)			
		1. Was every acceptance of a grant or devise of real or personal property on terms prescribed by the donor made by resolution of the governing board adopted by a two-thirds majority of its members and expressing such terms in full?			
§ 375.19		2. If not in the case of a <u>county</u> only, did the county board accept real or personal property from a person whose care, support, treatment, or maintenance, in whole or part, is or may be chargeable to or furnished or provided by the county?			
§ 169.022		Traffic Violation Administrative Penalties/Safety Classes (Applies to all political subdivisions.)			
		<ol> <li>If the political subdivision has established administrative penalties, has the political subdivision refrained from establishing administrative penalties for traffic regulation, including speeding, DWI, missing plates or tabs, not wearing seatbelts, and other similar state traffic offences or</li> <li>Was a resolution passed under Minn. Stat. § 169.999 (Administrative Citations for certain traffic Offences), and were the provisions of that</li> </ol>			
		<ul> <li>section followed?</li> <li>Has the political subdivision <u>not</u> established a safety class option in lieu of issuance or court filing of a state uniform traffic ticket?</li> </ul>			
§ 471.665, subd. 3		Mileage Reimbursement/Automobile allowance (Applies to any county, home rule charter or statutory city, town, or school district.) [Note: The City of St. Paul and counties having more than 550,000 inhabitants have additional authority. <u>See</u> Minn. Stat. § 471.665, subd. 2.]			
		If the entity has established an automobile allowance for any officer or employee, is the allowance <u>in lieu of</u> all other mileage reimbursement to that officer or employee?			

Minn. Stat.		MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
Section § 43A.17, subd. 9	F.	Compensation Limit (Applies to political subdivisions; including cities, counties, towns, metropolitan or regional agencies, or other political subdivisions, but does not include a hospital, clinic, or health maintenance organization owned by such a governmental unit. It also does <u>not</u> apply to school districts.)			Kelelence
		1. Did the salary and the value of all other forms of compensation of each county or city employee not exceed 110 percent of the salary of the governor increased by the increase, if any, in the Consumer Price Index as described in Minn. Stat. § 43A.17, subd. 9b? [This amount was \$150,065 for 2010, and \$151,866 for 2011, and \$157,181 for 2012.]; or			
		2. Has the entity obtained an increase in the limit from the Commissioner of Employee Relations?			
§ 270C.66	G.	Withholding Affidavit/Certificate (Applies to all political subdivisions.)			
		Before making final settlement with any contractor under a contract requiring the employment of employees for wages by said contractor and by subcontractors, did the entity obtain a certificate by the Commissioner of Revenue that the contractor or subcontractor has complied with the withholding requirements of Minn. Stat. § 290.92 (either Form IC134 or a Contractor's Withholding Affidavit Confirmation)?			
§§ 15.17 & 138.17	H.	Destruction of Records (Applies to all political subdivisions.)			
		If the entity disposed of government records, did it do so in compliance with a validly adopted records retention schedule or "Application for Authority to Dispose of Records?"			
	I.	Public Purpose (Applies to all political subdivisions.)			
Ops. Atty. Gen. 442a- 17, Jan. 17,		1. Did the entity refrain from donating money to people, nonprofit organizations, and charities unless allowed by specific authority?			
1938; 59a- 22, Nov. 23, 1966; 270-D,		2. Did the entity refrain from paying for Christmas parties and other employee social events?			
Aug. 12, 1977; 174E, March 24, 1970		3. Did the entity refrain from paying retroactive bonuses or pay increases unless the bonus or pay increase was paid under a pre-existing agreement or pursuant to collective bargaining?			
§ 471.661	J.	Out-of-State Travel Policy (Applies to each city, county, school district, regional agency, or other political subdivision, <u>except</u> a town.)			
		1. Does the unit of government have on record a policy that controls travel outside the state of Minnesota for the applicable elected officials of the relevant unit of government?			
		2. Was the policy initially approved and were subsequent changes, if any, approved by a recorded vote?			
		3. Does the policy specify:			
		a. when travel outside the state is appropriate;			
		b. applicable expense limits; and			

Minn. Stat. Section	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	Yes	No	Workpaper Reference
Section	c. procedures for approval of the travel?	105	INU	Kelefellee
	4. Is the policy available for public inspection upon request?			
	Part III. Cities			
	A. Subdivision Regulationsfees in lieu of dedication.			
	If the city requires a cash fee in lieu of dedication of buildable land for parks, recreational facilities, playgrounds, trails, wetlands or open space:			
§ 462.358, subds. 2b & 2c	1. Was the cash fee based on fair market value of land and set by ordinance no later than at the time of final approval?			
	2. Did the city adopt a capital improvement budget?			
	3. Did the city have a parks and open space plan <u>or</u> have a parks, trails, and open space component in its comprehensive plan?			
	4. Were cash payments placed in a special fund to be used only for the purposes for which the money was obtained?			
	5. Were cash payments used only for the acquisition and development or improvement of parks, recreational facilities, playgrounds, trails, wetlands, or open space based on the approved park system plan and <u>not</u> used for ongoing operation or maintenance?			
	Part IV. Audit Conclusion			
	ast state a conclusionbased on this questionnaire and any other audit procedures performed the legal provisions reviewed relating to political subdivision miscellaneous provisions.	wheth	er the	client has

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

# LEGAL COMPLIANCE MANUAL

# TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

### Introduction

Tax increment financing (TIF) is a financing tool created to promote economic development, redevelopment, and housing in areas of the state where it would not otherwise occur. A TIF authority may be a city, county, or an entity created by a city or county, such as a housing and redevelopment authority (HRA) or economic development authority (EDA). The TIF authority creates, and the municipality approves the establishment of, the TIF district. The county certifies a TIF district, a geographic area where new development, redevelopment, or housing would not occur "but-for" the use of tax increment.

The authority captures the property tax revenues generated by the increase in net tax capacity resulting from the new development and uses this increase in property tax revenues, i.e., the tax increments, to finance qualifying expenditures related to the new development. These qualifying expenditures generally relate to acquisition, clean up, and preparation of the site for construction. Each TIF district has a term of years depending on the type of public assistance provided to the site. Once the costs are paid and the TIF district is decertified, the property taxes are distributed to the county, city, and school district for financing local services.

The Office of the State Auditor prepares Statements of Position to provide an educational resource to local governments, auditors and the public. Statements of Position on Tax Increment Financing topics are available on the Office of the State Auditor website. *See http://www.auditor.state.mn.us/default.aspx?page=statements.* 

Auditors should determine whether any special laws applicable to the municipality or authority affect the general legal standards related to tax increment financing. Special laws are found in Table 1 of Minnesota Statutes.

Minn. Stat. Section

Workpaper
Reference

	Part I. Segregation/Tax Increment Revenues		
§ 469.174, subd. 25	Tax increment includes:		
	1. Taxes paid by the captured net tax capacity, but excluding any excess taxes, as computed under section 469.177;		
	2. Interest or other investment earnings on or from tax increments received after July 1, 1997;		
	3. The proceeds from the sale or lease of property, tangible or intangible, to the extent the property was purchased by the authority with tax increments after June 30, 1997;		
	4. Principal and interest received on loans or other advances made by the authority with tax increments after June 30, 1997;		
	5. Repayments or return of tax increment to the authority under agreements for districts for which the request for certification was made after August 1, 1993; and		
	6. Market value homestead credit paid to the authority under Minn. Stat. § 273.1384, subd. 1( <i>repealed</i> , 2011 Minn. Laws, 1 st Spec. Sess. ch. 7, art. 6, §27).		
§ 469.177, subd. 5	Did the authority segregate tax increment from this district in a special account or accounts on its official books and records, or segregate it as otherwise established by resolution to be held by a trustee for the benefit of bondholders?		
	Part II. Interfund Loans		
§ 469.178, subd. 7	For interfund loans made after July 31, 2001, to finance TIF eligible expenditures, was the loan or advance authorized by resolution before the money was transferred, advanced, or spent, whichever is earliest?		
§ 469.178, subd. 7	Are the terms and conditions for repayment of the loan in writing, and do they include, at a minimum, the principal amount, the interest rate, and the maximum term?		
§ 469.178, subd. 7	Does the interest rate on the loan or advance not exceed the greater of the rates specified under section 270C.40 or 549.09, as of the date the loan or advance was authorized?		
§ 469.178, subd. 7	<b>Note:</b> An authority or municipality may advance or loan money to finance TIF expenditures from "its General Fund or any fund under which it has legal authority to do so."		
	Part III. Four-Year Knock Down Rule		
			-
§ 469.176, subd. 6	If, after four years from the date of certification of the original net tax capacity of the district, no demolition, rehabilitation, or renovation of property or other site preparation, including qualified improvement of a street adjacent to a parcel but not installation of utility service including sewer and water systems, has commenced on a parcel in the district, was that parcel excluded from the original net tax capacity of the district?		
	<b>Note:</b> The TIF authority must submit to the county auditor, by February 1 of the fifth year following the year in which the parcel was certified, evidence that the required activity has taken place on each parcel in the district.		
	Part IV. Decertification		
§ 469.177, subd. 12	A. Was this TIF district decertified when the earliest of the following times was reached:		
	1. The statutory maximum duration limit under section 469.176, subdivisions 1b to 1g;		
§ 469.176, subd. 1	2. The maximum duration limit as provided in the TIF plan;		

Minn. Stat.	TAX INCREMENT FINANCING			Workpaper
Section		Yes	No	Reference
§ 469.176,	3. Sufficient funds have been irrevocably deposited for all outstanding bonds			
subd. 1	to which tax increment from the district is pledged to provide for the			
	payment of bond principal and interest to maturity or date of redemption;			
§ 469.1763,	4. Beginning in the sixth year following certification of a post-1990 TIF			
subd. 4	district, sufficient tax increment revenues are available to pay, to defease,			
	or to set aside to pay, outstanding bonds and binding contracts entered into			
	before or within five years of the certification of the district?BDid the authority file a confirmation of decertified TIF district form with its			
	county auditor?			
	C. Did the authority not receive any tax increment revenues from the county auditor			
	following decertification of the district?			
§ 469.176,	D. For TIF districts with certification request dates prior to August 1, 1979, has no			
subd. 1c	tax increment been paid to the authority after August 1, 2009?			
	Part V. Pooling Restrictions / Five-Year Rule			
8 460 1762	-			
§ 469.1763, subd. 2	General Principles			
5464.2	1. This section applies only to TIF districts with certification request dates			
	after April 30, 1990.			
	2. Redevelopment districts are subject to a 75% in-district requirement.			
	3. Districts other than redevelopment districts that have a certification			
	request date after April 30, 1990 and before July 1, 1995, are subject to			
	a 75% in-district requirement.			
	1			
	4. Districts other than redevelopment districts that have a certification			
	request date after June 30, 1995, are subject to an 80% in-district			
	requirement.			
§ 469.174,	5. For each post-April 1990 TIF district, the in-district percentage			
subd. 25(1)	requirement applies only to the tax increment paid by the properties in			
5000. 25(1)	the district. It does not apply to tax increment from sale or lease			
	proceeds, interest earnings, or market value homestead credit.			
§ 469.1763,	6. Tax increment revenue generated by properties in the district must be			
subd. 1(b)	expended on <u>activities in the district</u> or to pay bonds, to the extent the			
	bond proceeds were used to finance activities in the district. "Activities" means acquisition of property, clearing of land, site			
	preparation, soils correction, removal of hazardous waste or pollution,			
	installation of utilities, construction of public or private improvements,			
	and other similar activities, but only to the extent permitted by law.			
	7. For more information, <i>see</i> the Office of the State Auditor Statement of			
	Position <u>Pooling Restrictions and the Five-Year Rule.</u>			
§ 469.1763,	Compliance with the Five-Year Rule and Decertification of District			
subds. 3, 4	Compliance with the Five-Year Rule is determined at the end of the fifth year. The			
	district is to be decertified when the tax increment collected from properties in the			
	district is equal to or no more than the tax increment expended on activities within the			
	district as described in A through E below. Double counting is not permitted.			
	1. For a redevelopment district and for economic development and renewal	 		
	and renovation districts with a certification request date before July 1,			
	1995, was 75% or more of the tax increment collected from the property			
	in the district expended as described in A through E below?			

		r	
	If the tax increment collected was equal to or more than the total tax		
	increment expended or to be expended as described in A through E, was		
	the district decertified by the end of the year in which the tax increment		
	revenues were collected?		
	2. For economic development and renewal and renovation districts with a		
	certification request date after June 30, 1995, was 80% or more of the		
	tax increment collected from the properties in the district expended as		
	described in A through E below?		
	If the tax increment collected was more than the total tax increment		
	expended or to be expended as described in A through E, was the		
	district decertified by the end of the year in which the tax increment		
	revenues were collected?		
§ 469.1763,	Tax Increment Expended on Activities Within the District		
ubds. 1 & 3			
	A. Before or within five years after certification of the district the tax increment		
	revenues are actually paid to a third party with respect to the activity.		
	Note: "Third Party" is defined to mean "an entity other than (1) the person		
	receiving the benefit of assistance financed with tax increments, or (2) the		
	municipality or the development authority or other person substantially under the		
	control of the municipality."		
	B. Before or within five years after certification of the district, bonds, the proceeds		
	of which must be used to finance the activity, are issued and sold to a third party.		
	1. The bond proceeds, on the date of issuance are reasonably expected to		
	be spent before the end of the later of (i) the five-year period, or (ii) a		
	reasonably temporary period within the meaning of the use of that term		
	under section $148(c)(1)$ of the Internal Revenue Code, or deposited in a		
	reasonably required reserve or replacement fund.		
	2. Tax increment revenue was spent to repay the bonds.		
	C. Before or within five years after certification of the district, binding contracts		
	with a third party are entered into for performance of the activity, and the tax		
	increment is spent under the contractual obligation.		
	activity are paid, and tax increment is spent to reimburse a party for the payment		
	of those costs, including interest on unreimbursed costs.		
	E. Expenditures are made for housing purposes as permitted by Minn. Stat. §		
	469.1763, subdivision 2, paragraphs (b) and (d) or for public infrastructure		
	purposes within a biotechnology and health sciences zone as permitted by Minn.		
	Stat. § 469.1763, subdivision 2, paragraph (e).		
	<b>NOTE:</b> Revenues derived from tax increment are considered to have been		
	expended on an in-district activity under Minn. Stat. § 469.1763, subdivision 2,		
	only if one of the above occurs. An activity includes, for example, acquisition of		
	property, site improvements, soil correction, installation of utilities and other		
	similar activities, but only to the extent that tax increment revenues may be spent		
	for such a purpose under the law. For purposes of this subdivision, bonds		
	include refunding bonds if the original bonds meet the requirements.		
	Part VI. Audit Conclusion		
	ist state a conclusionbased on this questionnaire and any other audit procedures performed	lwhether the c	lient has
omplied with	the legal provisions reviewed relating to Tax Increment Financing.		
onclusion			
conclusion:			